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Proboscis
Monkey
This iconic Malaysian animal
faces the risk of extinction.
Genomic data from these
unique monkeys could be used
to enhance their conservation
and breeding programmes.
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Letter to

Shareholders
Dear Shareholders,
On behalf of the Board of Directors and the management team,
we are pleased to present the Annual Report of Malaysian
Genomics Resource Centre Berhad (‘MGRC’ or ‘the Company’) for
the financial year ended 30 June 2011.
Over the past year, we have immersed ourselves in
further understanding the enormous potential within
genomics. We have passionately continued to study
genes and their patterns of variation to better
understand how living things may function at the
genome level.
Through our close working relationship with our
customers, we aim for the highest in the quality
of service we provide. The feedback we obtain
enables us to continuously improve and enhance
our capability to provide cutting-edge services that
are ahead of our competitors. By addressing our
customers’ project requirements, we are able to
understand their downstream research needs, which
then helps us to innovate our genetic analysis
applications to better serve and manage their
expectations.
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‘… MGRC is involved in two significant national
projects that were awarded by the Ministry of
Science, Technology and Innovation (MOSTI).’

Sequencing Services

Downstream Analysis

From the listing proceeds, we have bought a next-generation
sequencing machine, the Illumina HiSeq 2000, to enable us
to carry out genome, transcriptome and exome sequencing
in-house. This allows us to reduce turnaround sequencing
time, and also provides us with the ability to closely monitor
the processes involved. All projects are carried out according
to our Standard Operating Procedures to ensure that the
generated sequence data is of the highest quality.

We continuously work hard to enhance the pipelines used for
our services. Through our efforts, our customers are able to
visualise the results of the genetic analysis, carried out by
MGRC, in a user-friendly interface. In turn, this enables them
to accelerate their downstream research and publish their
findings sooner.

The addition of senior scientists to the Company brings vast
expertise and technical know-how which has greatly
benefitted the existing team. These new scientists have
mentored and guided the MGRC staff, and elevated their
knowledge and capabilities, to make them strong, efficient
and innovative.

‘In our efforts to diversify
MGRC’s business offerings,
we launched the Genetic
Screening Services (GSS)
in June 2011.’

One of our key customers is Brigham and Women’s Hospital,
a teaching affiliate of Harvard Medical School, which we have
been working closely with on projects involving lung cancer
genomes. In July 2010, they submitted 10 genomes to
MGRC for in-depth genetic analysis. Collaborating with this
world-renowned institute has greatly benefitted the MGRC
team, enabling us to further refine and enhance our services
to meet their specific needs.
The fact that Brigham and Women’s Hospital continues to
work with us on their lung cancer project highlights their trust
and faith in our services and demonstrates our commitment
in helping them take their research one step further.
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Collaboration
As a result of being able to provide end-to-end sequencing and
analysis services, MGRC is involved in two significant national
projects that were awarded by the Ministry of Science,
Technology and Innovation (MOSTI). The first project is the
MyGenome Project which involves the sequencing and
analysis of the genomes of 25 individuals from different
Malaysian ethnicities. The aim of this Project is to study the
genetic diversity within the different ethnic groups in
Malaysia.
The second project is the Proboscis Monkey Project, which
involves the sequencing and assembly of the Proboscis
monkey genome. It is hoped that the information gained from
the Project can be used to assist in enhancing conservation
and breeding programmes for the Proboscis monkey.
As part of our goal to develop strategic partnerships with
world-renowned research organisations, we have signed a
collaboration with John Innes Enterprise Ltd, the commercial
trading subsidiary of the UK-based John Innes Centre (JIC),
in February 2011. JIC is the largest plant science and
microbiology centre in the world, and has an excellent track
record in plant genetics and genomics.
This collaboration will help MGRC to explore opportunities
related to plant and microbial genomics with Malaysian
universities and research organisations. At the same time,
MGRC’s collaboration with JIC provides Malaysian scientists
with easy access to JIC’s expertise and extensive knowledge
applicable to plants and microbes.

Human Resource
We recognise the importance of having personnel who share
MGRC’s vision and aspirations. Each individual is carefully
selected and is motivated to assume a bigger role and
responsibility in improving the Company’s services.
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We have expanded our MGRC team to include senior
scientists and fresh faces. The latest additions have fitted in
seamlessly with the existing team, and MGRC continues to
greatly benefit from the sharing of ideas, dissemination of
knowledge and output of expertise throughout the Company.
Our vision is clear and we strive hard to move even further
ahead. We are all working together as a close unit to help
MGRC push the boundaries within the genomics space as
there is so much more to understand and discover.

Genetic Screening Services
In our efforts to diversify MGRC’s business offerings, we
launched the Genetic Screening Services (GSS) in June 2011.
The services will be offered to healthcare professionals, and
will enable them to screen and detect inherited disease
genes and mutations in patients. The resulting data will
help doctors to know if a patient is predisposed to a certain
genetic disease, or is susceptible to adverse drug reactions.
Ultimately, GSS empowers medical practitioners to better
advise their patients on managing a healthy lifestyle.
Through collaborations and partnerships with public healthcare
institutions and private medical centres, we hope to firmly
establish MGRC as the leading provider of Genetic Screening
Services in Malaysia. We aim to become the go-to centre for
such services, and at the same time help reshape Malaysian
healthcare and the way diseases are diagnosed and treated.
We also offer a range of specially designed microarrays that
screen for hundreds of infectious and communicable diseases
simultaneously. These microarrays enable public health
authorities to rapidly screen for more than 400 types of known
and novel disease-causing pathogens during an outbreak or
epidemic. As a result, the authorities are able to identify the
responsible pathogens, and issue treatment more rapidly and
efficiently.

‘For the financial year ended 30 June 2011,
MGRC’s revenue was RM12.1 million.’
Performance
For the financial year ended 30 June 2011, MGRC’s revenue
was RM12.1 million. The majority of this revenue was
generated from our Contract Genomics Services for
customers located in Malaysia. Profit, net of tax, for the same
period was RM2.6 million.

We are confident that there is great value in genetic screening
as it will provide consumers with important information on
their genetic make-up. This information will then empower
them to make informed decisions for healthcare and lifestyle
management.

To date, MGRC has remained profitable. We achieved a profit,
net of tax, of RM9.3 million for the period from 1 June 2009
to 30 June 2010, and RM12.0 million for the year from
1 June 2008 to 31 May 2009.

Appreciation

Looking Ahead
According to a 2011 research report, ‘Global Bioinformatics
Market Outlook’, the global bioinformatics market was
estimated to be around US$3 billion in 2010, and is projected
to continue to surge at a compound annual growth rate
of almost 26 percent during 2011 to 2013 to a value of
approximately US$6.2 billion.
With the positive global outlook for this space, we will
continue to source for new and significant genomics projects
in the local and overseas market. With our ability to provide
genome sequencing and analysis, we are confident that we
have the capabilities and expertise to fulfil the requirements
of our customers and retain their confidence and loyalty.
We will continue with our expansion into the consumer
market via the provision of Genetic Screening Services to
hospitals and other point-of-care facilities. The decreasing
costs of genome sequencing due to the emergence of
cheaper technology and also improvements in microarray
technology have helped the recent shift towards the
consumer market.

We acknowledge that our journey to where we are today is
only possible through the efforts of various individuals and
organisations who share our passion.
On behalf of the Board of Directors, we would like to take this
opportunity to thank all our valued shareholders for their
support and belief in us. We would like to extend our
appreciation to the Malaysian Government, especially MOSTI,
and Malaysian Biotechnology Corporation Sdn Bhd, for their
continuing efforts in helping the biotechnology sector to
progress further and contribute to Malaysia’s development.
We would also like to extend our appreciation to the Board of
Directors for their leadership and guidance, and to the
management and staff for their tireless efforts, dedication and
loyalty.

Tan Sri Datuk (Dr)
Rafiah binti Salim
Senior Independent
Non-Executive Chairman

Robert George Hercus
@ Abdul Karim Hercus
Managing Director
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MGRC recorded a revenue of RM12.1 million and
EBITDA of RM3.3 million for the financial year. The profit,
net of tax was RM2.6 million for the financial year. Total
Equity was RM32.7 million as at 30 June 2011, mainly
due to the issuance of new shares and the current year's
profit. The Current Assets balance of RM27.4 million,
mainly comprise cash and bank balance.
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FY2007
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Financial Review

REVENUE COMPOSITION - 5 YEARS
Genomics
Data Access
Services
(RM'000)

Contract
Genomics
Services
(RM'000)

Total
Revenue
(RM'000)

4,800
5,200
4,800
4,800
2,000

7,346
10,579
12,256
1,389
13

12,146
15,779
17,056
6,189
2,013

FY2011
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REVENUE COMPOSITION (RM’000)
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As in the previous year, the largest contributor to MGRC’s revenue was its Contract Genomics Services.
Contract Genomics Services contributed 60% of total revenue for the financial year. Data Access Services
contributed 40% of total revenue for the financial year. Data Access Services will continue as a recurring source
of revenue through to December 2011. 98% of the Company’s revenue was derived from Malaysian customers
and 2% from customers in the United States.
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By uncovering the genome of
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now begin downstream
research to better understand
which genes influence desired
traits in the palm trees.
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Statement on Corporate Governance

Introduction
The Board of Directors (“the Board”) of Malaysian Genomics Resource Centre Berhad (“MGRC” or “the Company”)
acknowledges good corporate governance as a top priority area of focus for the Company. The Board is responsible for the
corporate governance of the Company, which is undertaken with due regard to all the Company’s stakeholders and to its role
within the community.
The Board is committed to observing and applying all principles of corporate governance set out in Part 1 of the Malaysian
Code on Corporate Governance (“the Code”) and has, to the best of its ability, complied with the best practices set out in Part
2 of the Code.

Board Of Directors
I.

The Board
The Board is responsible for, amongst other matters, establishing and communicating the strategic direction and
corporate values of the Company, and supervising its affairs to ensure its success within a framework of acceptable
risks and effective controls in compliance with the relevant laws, regulations, guidelines and directives in the territories
in which it operates. It reviews management performance, and ensures that the necessary financial and human resources
are available to meet the objectives of the Company.
Further to this, the Board has delegated specific responsibilities to various Board Committees, in order to assist the
Board in the running of the Company. The functions and terms of reference of the Board Committees have been clearly
defined. There are three (3) Board Committees, namely, the Audit Committee, the Nomination Committee and the
Remuneration Committee. These Committees deliberate on and discuss issues within their terms of reference, and
report their recommendations to the Board. However, the ultimate responsibility for decision-making still lies with the
Board.

II.

Board Balance
The Board consists of six (6) members, of which, three (3) are Executive Directors, one (1) is a Non-Independent NonExecutive Director and two (2) are Independent Non-Executive Directors, thus fulfilling the ACE Market Listing
Requirements of Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad (“Bursa Securities”) which specify that at least one-third of the Board
should comprise independent directors.
The Board is of the opinion that the composition of the current Board reflects a balance of executive and non-executive
directors, such that the interests of not only the Company, but also the stakeholders and the general public, are upheld
in the formulation and adoption of business strategies. Collectively, the Directors combine their diverse commercial,
regulatory, industry and financial experience to add value to the Board as a whole. There is also a clear division of
responsibilities between the Chairman and the Managing Director to ensure that the Board remains balanced at all times.
The profiles of the members of the Board are set out on pages 15 to 20 of this Annual Report.

III.

Duties and Responsibilities of the Board
All Board members participate fully in decisions on key issues involving the Company. The Executive Directors are
responsible for implementing the policies and decisions of the Board and managing the Company’s day-to-day operations.
Together with the Independent Non-Executive Directors, they ensure that strategies are fully discussed and examined,
taking into account the long term interests of the various stakeholders including shareholders, employees, customers,
suppliers and the community.
The duties and responsibilities of the Board include determining the Company's overall strategic plans, performing
periodic reviews of business and financial performance, engaging in succession planning and adopting practical risk
management, as well as implementing a strong framework of internal controls for the Company.
The role and responsibility of the Managing Director is distinct, separate and clearly defined. The Managing Director,
assisted by the Directors, has the overall responsibility of working towards achieving strategic goals and objectives for
the Company and implementing the Company's policies, corporate strategies and decisions.
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Statement on Corporate Governance

Board Of Directors (cont’d)
IV.

Board Meetings
The Board is scheduled to meet four (4) times a year at quarterly intervals, with additional meetings to be convened
when urgent and important decisions are to be made between the scheduled meetings. The meeting agenda for these
meetings includes the review of quarterly financial results and announcements, business directions, business plans and
budgets, macro strategies and discussions on other major matters such as acquisitions, investments and disposals.
Proceedings of, and resolutions passed at, each Board Meeting are documented in the minutes and signed by the
Chairman at the subsequent Board Meeting. In addition to Board Meetings, the Board exercises control over matters
that require Board approval through the circulation of Directors' Resolutions. These minutes and resolutions are kept at
the registered office of the Company.
During the financial year under review, four (4) Board meetings were held and the attendance of the Directors is as
follows:
Directors
Robert George Hercus @ Abdul Karim Hercus
Munirah binti Haji Abdul Hamid
Ahmad Fauzi bin Ali
Dato’ Dr Norraesah binti Mohamad
Tan Sri Datuk (Dr) Rafiah binti Salim
Loh Lee Soon

V.

No. of Meetings Attended
4/4
4/4
4/4
4/4
4/4
4/4

Supply of Information
The agenda for Board Meetings, together with appropriate reports and information on the Company's business operations
in addition to proposal papers for the Board's consideration, are circulated to all the Directors prior to the meetings in a
timely manner to enable the Directors to review the material and obtain additional information or clarification prior to the
meeting.
All Directors have access to all information within the Company as well as to the advice and services of the company
secretaries, whether as a full Board or in their individual capacities, to assist them in the decision-making process. Where
necessary, the Directors may engage independent professionals at the Company's expense on specific issues, in order
to enable the Directors to discharge their duties with the benefit of all available knowledge and resources.

VI.

Appointment to the Board
The Nomination Committee is responsible for making recommendations relating to any new appointments to the Board.
In making these recommendations, the Nomination Committee will take into account the individual’s skill, knowledge,
expertise, experience, professionalism, integrity and level of other commitments. Any new nomination received is put
to the full Board for assessment and approval.

VII. Re-Elections
In accordance with the Company’s Articles of Association, one-third (1/3) of the Directors shall retire by rotation at each
annual general meeting provided always that all Directors shall retire from office at least once every three (3) years. A
retiring Director shall be eligible for re-election.
VIII. Board Committees
The Board has established the following committees to assist it in the discharge of its duties and responsibilities.
The committees are provided with written terms of reference, and the chairman of the various committees reports the
decisions and outcomes of the committee meetings, to the full Board for assessment and approval.
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Statement on Corporate Governance

Board Of Directors (cont’d)
VIII. Board Committees (cont’d)
Audit Committee
The composition of the Audit Committee, its terms of reference and its activities during the financial year ended
30 June 2011 are set out in the Audit Committee Report on pages 42 to 48 of this Annual Report.
Nomination Committee
The Nomination Committee is responsible for identifying and recommending new nominees to the Board. The
Nomination Committee will monitor, review and assess the effectiveness of the Board as a whole and its individual
directors on an annual basis. In developing such recommendations, the Nomination Committee will consult all Directors
and reflect the findings of such consultations, in any recommendation brought before the Board. The Board decides on
appointments after considering the recommendations of the Nomination Committee.
Remuneration Committee
The Remuneration Committee reviews and proposes, subject to the approval of the Board, the remuneration policy and
terms and conditions of service of each Executive Director for his/her services as a member of the Board, as well as on
Committees of the Board. The remuneration of Executive Directors is generally based on market conditions, scope of
responsibilities held, individual performance, seniority, experience and the overall financial performance of the Company.
The remuneration of Non-Executive Directors is a matter for the decision of the Board as a whole. A director whose
remuneration is being assessed, is required to abstain from deliberation and voting on his/her individual remuneration.
Decisions and recommendations of the Remuneration Committee shall be reported back to the Board for approval and
where required by rules and regulations governing the Company, for the approval of shareholders at the annual general
meeting.

Directors’ Remuneration
The objective of the Company’s policy on Directors’ remuneration is to ensure that the level of remuneration is sufficient to
attract and retain high-profile Directors with a wealth of industry experience. The aggregate remuneration paid or payable to
all Directors of the Company and the corresponding bands of remuneration for the financial year ended 30 June 2011 are as
reflected in Note 8 of the Notes to the Financial Statements as set out on page 87 in this Annual Report.
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Directors’ Training
All directors have completed the Mandatory Accreditation Programme required by Bursa Securities.
There continues to be an awareness of the importance and benefits of attending and participating in training and continuing
education programmes which will enhance knowledge and skill levels, amongst the Directors.
During the financial period under review:
a)

b)

c)

d)

Tan Sri Datuk (Dr) Rafiah binti Salim attended the following:
a.

Risk Awareness Workshop organised by KPMG Malaysia on 17 January 2011; and

b.

Conference: 7th World Islamic Economic Forum Foundation (WIEF), 7 - 9 June 2011 in Kazakhstan.

Robert George Hercus @ Abdul Karim Hercus attended the following:
a.

European Ilumina User Symposium organised by Illumina Inc from 13 July to 15 July 2010;

b.

Eminent Speaker Series – Supporting Systems Biology with Data Integration by Prof Dr Chris Rawlings, Director
of the Centre for Mathematical and Computational Biology of Rothamsted Research, UK, on 3 August 2010;

c.

BioMalaysia 2010; “Crops and Genetic Improvement” on 3 November 2010;

d.

Risk Awareness Workshop organised by KPMG Malaysia on 17 January 2011;

e.

Mandatory Accreditation Programme for Directors of Public Listed Companies organised by Bursatra Sdn Bhd on
26 - 27 January 2011; and

f.

Seminar: National Genomics Plan; organised by the Ministry of Plantation Industries and Commodities (MPIC) on
14 April 2011.

Munirah binti Haji Abdul Hamid attended the following:
a.

Mandatory Accreditation Programme for Directors of Public Listed Companies organised by Bursatra Sdn Bhd on
1 December 2010;

b.

Risk Awareness Workshop organised by KPMG Malaysia on 17 January 2011; and

c.

Conference: 7th World Islamic Economic Forum Foundation (WIEF), 7 - 9 June 2011 in Kazakhstan.

Dato’ Dr. Norraesah binti Haji Mohamad attended the following:
a.

“Understanding Blue Ocean Best Implementation Best Practices” on 13 October 2010; and

b.

Conference: 7th World Islamic Economic Forum Foundation (WIEF), 7 - 9 June 2011 in Kazakhstan.
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Statement on Corporate Governance

Directors’ Training (cont’d)
e)

f)

Ahmad Fauzi Ali attended the following:
a.

Mandatory Accreditation Programme for Directors of Public Listed Companies organised by Bursatra Sdn Bhd on
1 December 2010; and

b.

Risk Awareness Workshop organised by KPMG Malaysia on 17 January 2011.

Loh Lee Soon attended the following courses:
a.

Seminar on Recent Changes to Financial Reporting Standards (FRS) organised by Ernst & Young, Malaysia from
21 - 22 September 2010;

b.

Risk Awareness Workshop organised by KPMG Malaysia on 17 January 2011;

c.

Financial Industry Directors’ Education (FIDE) Core Program Modules 1, 2, 3 and 4 - “Governance Frameworks
in Financial Institutions; Enterprise Risk Management and Oversight” organised by ICLIF Leadership and
Governance Centre, Bank Negara Malaysia, April - May 2011; and

d.

“Risk Management Committee: Managing Risks in Financial Institutions (Insurance)” organised by ICLIF Leadership
and Governance Centre, Bank Negara Malaysia from 11 - 12 May 2011.

All the Directors will continue to attend relevant trainings and education programmes in order to keep themselves abreast of
the latest economic, technological and industry-related developments with a view to discharging their duties and responsibilities
effectively.

Shareholders
I.

Dialogue Between Company and Investors
The Board recognises the importance of accountability to shareholders on all major developments affecting the Company.
Information is disseminated to shareholders and investors through various channels which include annual financial results,
annual reports as well as, where appropriate, circulars and press releases. The Board regularly reviews the information
disseminated, to ensure that consistent and accurate information is provided to the shareholders of the Company.
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Statement on Corporate Governance

Shareholders (cont’d)
II.

Annual General Meeting (“AGM”)
The AGM is the principal forum for dialogue with shareholders. It is a useful opportunity for the Directors to promote
and encourage bilateral communications with its shareholders through participation at the annual general meetings. The
external auditors are also present in order to provide their professional and independent clarification on issues of concern
raised by the shareholders, if any.

Accountability and Audit
I.

Financial Reporting
In preparing the financial statements, the Directors are required to select appropriate accounting policies, and to ensure
that they are consistently applied and supported by reasonable and prudent judgements and estimates. The Directors
are responsible for ensuring that the Company keeps proper accounting records which disclose with accuracy at any
time, the financial position of the Company; thereby enabling them to ensure that the financial statements comply with
the Companies Act, 1965. The Directors are also responsible to take such steps as are reasonable as to safeguard the
assets of the Company against fraud and other irregularities.
The Statement of Directors’ Responsibility for preparing the Annual Audited Financial Statements pursuant to Rule
15.26(a) of the ACE Market Listing Requirements of Bursa Securities is set out on page 49 of this Annual Report.

II.

Internal Control
The Board acknowledges its responsibility to maintain a sound system of internal controls in the Company. These controls
provide reasonable, but no absolute, assurance against material misstatement, loss or fraud.
Information on the Company’s internal control systems is presented in the Statement on Internal Control on pages 40
to 41 of this Annual Report.

III.

Relationship with Auditors
The Company's independent external auditors play an essential role in ensuring the reliability of the Company's financial
statements and providing the assurance of accuracy to shareholders. The Company has always maintained a formal and
transparent relationship with its external auditors, in seeking professional advice and ensuring compliance with the
Financial Reporting Standards and Companies Act,1965 in Malaysia.

The Board considers that the Company has implemented, as far as possible, the Best Practices set out in the Code.
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Other Compliance Information

Share Buy-Back
There was no share buy-back of the Company’s shares during the financial year ended 30 June 2011.

Options, Warrants and Convertible Securities
There were no options, warrants or convertible securities exercised during the financial year as the Company has not issued
any options, warrants or convertible securities.

Depository Receipt Programme
The Company has not sponsored any depository receipt programme during the financial year under review.

Imposition of Sanctions and/or Penalties
There were no public sanctions and/or penalties imposed on the Company, Directors or the Management by any regulatory
body during the financial year under review.

Non-Audit Fee Paid to External Auditors
Non-audit fees paid to the external auditors for the financial year under review are disclosed in Note 6 of the Notes to the
Financial Statements on pg 86 of this Annual Report.

Profit Estimate, Forecast, Projection or Unaudited Results
The Company did not issue any profit estimate, forecast or projection for the financial year under review. There was no deviation
of 10% or more between the results as disclosed in the Audited Financial Statements and the unaudited results previously
announced.

Profit Guarantee
There was no profit guarantee given by the Company during the financial year.

Material Contracts
There were no material contracts entered into by the Company involving the interests of the Directors and substantial
shareholders during the financial year ended 30 June 2011.

Revaluation Policy on Landed Properties
The Company does not have any landed properties.
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Other Compliance Information

Status of Utilisation of Proceeds
The company was listed on the ACE Market of Bursa Malaysia Securities on 5 October 2010. The Company raised RM18.5 million
from its Initial Public Offering (“IPO”) and the details of utilisation of such proceeds as at 30 June 2011 is as follows:
Purpose

Initial Timeframe
for Utilisation

Capital expenditure
- Laboratory equipment
- Computer hardware
& software

Within two (2)
years from the date
of listing

Research & development
expenditure

Within two (2)
years from the date
of listing

Marketing expenditure

Working capital

Listing expenses

Total utilisation of funds

Proposed
Utilisation
RM'000

Actual
Utilisation
RM'000

Balance of Amount
Allocated
RM'000
%

6,000

4 ,434

1,566

26%

900

605

295

33%

1,510

-

1,510

100%

Within three (3)
years from the date
of listing

2,000

463

1,537

77%

Within two (2)
years from the date
of listing

4,568

4 ,620

(52)

-1%

Within one (1)
month from the
date of listing

3,490

3,178

312

9%

18,468

13,300

5,168

28%

Explanation

#

# The under utilisation of listing expenses will be adjusted to working capital.
Recurrent Related Party Transactions of a Revenue or Trading Nature (“RRPT’s”)
The information on RRPT’s for the financial year is presented in the Audited Financial Statements in this Annual Report and the
Circular to shareholders.

Annual Report 2011

39

Statement on Internal Control

Introduction
Pursuant to paragraph 15.26(b) of Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad (“Bursa Securities”) ACE Market Listing Requirements,
the Board of Directors (“the Board”) of Malaysian Genomics Resource Centre Berhad (“MGRC”) is pleased to provide the
following statement on the state of internal control of the Company, which has been prepared in accordance with the
“Statement of Internal Control: Guidance for Directors of Public Listed Companies” issued by the Institute of Internal Auditors
Malaysia and adopted by Bursa Securities.
The Company was incorporated on 18 May 2004 and was listed on the ACE Market of Bursa Securities on 5 October 2010.
The Board is pleased to share the key aspects of the Company’s internal control systems for the duration of the financial year
ended 30 June 2011.

Board Responsibility
The Board is responsible to maintain a sound system of internal control to safeguard shareholders’ investments and the
Company’s assets, as well as to review the adequacy and integrity of the system of internal control. The responsibility for
reviewing the adequacy and integrity of the Company’s system of internal control is delegated to the Audit Committee, which
is empowered under its terms of reference to seek assurance on the adequacy and integrity of the internal control system
through independent reviews carried out by the internal audit function and the Management.
The Board confirms that a formal process is in place for identifying, evaluating and managing the significant risks faced by the
Company for the financial period under review and that this process is ongoing.
However, as there are inherent limitations in any system of internal controls, such systems put into effect by the Management
can only reduce but cannot eliminate all risks that may impede the achievement of the Company’s business objectives.
Therefore, the internal control system can only provide reasonable and not absolute assurance against material misstatement
or loss.

Key Elements of the Company’s Internal Control System
Key elements of the Company’s internal control system established to facilitate the proper conduct of the Company’s
businesses are described below.
1.

40

Control Environment
•

Policies & Procedures
Internal policies and procedures undergo constant improvements to ensure that they continue to support the
Company’s business activities as the Company continues to grow.

•

Organisation Structure & Authorisation Procedures
The Company maintains a formal organisation structure. In addition, a formal set of Authority Limits is in place in
order to establish and enhance the internal control system of the Company’s various operations.

•

Monitoring and Reporting Procedures
In its day-to-day activities, the Company utilises its clear reporting structure to minimise operating risks.

•

Human Resource
The Company has implemented various process flows and procedures governing recruitment and employment.
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Statement on Internal Control

Key Elements of the Company’s Internal Control System (cont’d)

2.

•

Annual Budget
The Company issues an annual budget and business plan, which is approved by the Board of Directors of the
Company.

•

Audit Committee Review
The Audit Committee, which comprises three (3) non-executive directors, two (2) of whom are independent and
one (1) of whom is non-independent, reviews all internal audit reports and has regular meetings with the
Management on all major internal control issues highlighted by the outsourced internal audit function.

Risk Management
The Board recognizes that identification, evaluation and management of significant risks faced by the Company are
ongoing processes.
The Board reviews internal control issues identified by the Management and maintains an ongoing commitment to
strengthen the Company’s control environment and processes as well as its risk management processes.

3.

Internal Audit Function
KPMG Business Advisory Sdn Bhd was engaged to assist the board in developing an Enterprise Risk Management
Framework for the purposes of identification, evaluation, control and reporting of significant risks and also to conduct
periodic reviews of the policies, procedures and system of internal controls of the Company.

4.

Information and Communication
Information critical to the achievement of the Company’s business objectives is communicated through established
reporting lines across the Company, in accordance with the Company’s organisational structure.

5.

Review & Monitoring Process
Clear reporting structures are in place to ensure proper monitoring of the Company’s operations and regular quarterly
reports are issued which monitor the Company’s performance.

The improvement of the system of internal controls is a continuing process and the Board maintains an ongoing commitment
to strengthening the Company’s control environment and processes.

Conclusion
For the financial year under review, the Board is of the view that the Company’s system of internal control is adequate to
safeguard shareholders’ investments and company assets. The Management will continue to take measures to strengthen
the control environment.

Review of the Statement by External Auditors
As required under paragraph 15.23 of the Listing Requirements of the ACE Market of Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad,
the external auditors have reviewed this Statement on Internal Control. Their review was performed in accordance with
Recommended Practice Guide 5 (“RPG5”) issued by the Malaysian Institute of Accountants. Based on the review, the external
auditors have reported to the Board that nothing has come to their attention that causes them to believe that this Statement
is inconsistent with their understanding of the process the Board has adopted in the review of the adequacy and integrity
of the internal controls of the Company. RPG5 does not require the external auditors to, and they did not, consider whether
this Statement covers all risks and controls, or to form an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company’s risk and control
procedures.
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Audit Committee Report

Audit Committee Report
The principle objectives of the Audit Committee are to assist the Board in discharging its statutory duties and responsibilities
in relation to corporate governance, internal control systems, management and financial reporting practices of the Company,
and to ensure proper disclosure to the shareholders of the Company.

Members
The current members of the Audit Committee are as follows:
Loh Lee Soon
(Independent Non-Executive Director) (Chairman)
Tan Sri Datuk (Dr) Rafiah binti Salim
(Senior Independent Non-Executive Chairman) (Member)
Ahmad Fauzi bin Ali
(Non-Independent Non-Executive Director) (Member)

Meetings and Attendance
The Audit Committee was formed on 5 February 2010 and the first Audit Committee meeting was held on 30 September 2010.
During the financial year under review, the Audit Committee convened four (4) meetings and the attendance of each Committee
member at each meeting is set out as follows:
Committee Members

No. of Meetings Attended

Loh Lee Soon
Tan Sri Datuk (Dr) Rafiah binti Salim
Ahmad Fauzi bin Ali
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4/4
4/4
4/4

Audit Committee Report

Terms of Reference of the Audit Committee
The terms of reference of the Audit Committee are as follows:
1.

Composition of Members
The Board shall appoint the Audit Committee members from amongst themselves, comprising no fewer than three (3)
non-executive directors. The majority of the Audit Committee members shall be independent directors.
In this respect, the Board adopts the definition of “independent director” as defined under the ACE Market Listing
Requirements of Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad (“Bursa Securities”).
All members of the Audit Committee shall be financially literate and at least one (1) member of the Audit Committee
must be:(a)

a member of the Malaysian Institute of Accountants (“MIA”); or

(b)

if he is not a member of MIA, he must have at least three (3) years of working experience and:

(c)

i.
or

he must have passed the examinations specified in Part I of the First Schedule of the Accountants Act 1967;

ii.

he must be a member of one of the associations of the accountants specified in Part II of the First Schedule
of the Accountants Act 1967; or

fulfills such other requirements as prescribed or approved by Bursa Securities.

No alternate director of the Board shall be appointed as a member of the Audit Committee.
The term of office and performance of the Audit Committee and each of its members shall be reviewed by the Board at
least once every three (3) years to determine whether the Audit Committee and its members have carried out their
duties in accordance with their terms of reference.
Retirement and Resignation
If a member of the Audit Committee resigns, dies, or for any reason ceases to be a member resulting in non-compliance
to the composition criteria as stated in paragraph 1 above, the Board shall within three (3) months of the event, appoint
such number of the new members as may be required to fill the vacancy.

2.

Chairman
The members of the Audit Committee shall elect a Chairman from amongst their number who shall be an independent
director.
In the absence of the Chairman of the Audit Committee, the other members of the Audit Committee shall amongst
themselves elect a Chairman who must be independent director, to chair the meeting.

3.

Secretary
The Company Secretary shall be the Secretary of the Audit Committee and as part of the reporting process, the Minutes
shall be circulated to all members of the Board.

Annual Report 2011

43

Audit Committee Report

Terms of Reference of the Audit Committee (cont’d)
4.

Meetings
The Audit Committee shall meet regularly, with due notice of issues to be discussed, and shall record its conclusions in
discharging its duties and responsibilities. In addition, the Chairman may call for additional meetings at any time, at the
Chairman’s discretion.
Upon the request of the external auditor, the Chairman of the Audit Committee shall convene a meeting of the Audit
Committee to consider any matter the external auditor believes should be brought to the attention of the directors or
shareholders.
Notice of Audit Committee meetings shall be given to all the Audit Committee members unless the Audit Committee
waives such requirement.
The Chairman of the Audit Committee shall engage on a continuous basis with senior management (such as the
Chairman, the Managing Director and the Financial Controller), and the external auditors in order to be kept informed of
matters affecting the Company.
The Financial Controller and a representative of the external auditors should normally attend meetings. Other Board
members and employees may attend meetings upon the invitation of the Audit Committee. The Audit Committee shall
be able to convene meetings with the external auditors, the internal auditors or both, without executive Board members
or employees present whenever deemed necessary and at least twice a year with the external auditors.
Questions arising at any meeting of the Audit Committee shall be decided by a majority of votes of the members present,
and in the case of equality of votes, the Chairman of the Audit Committee shall have a second or casting vote.

5.

Minutes
Minutes of each meeting shall be kept at the registered office and distributed to each member of the Audit Committee,
and also to the other members of the Board. The Audit Committee Chairman shall report on each meeting to the Board.
The minutes of the Audit Committee meeting shall be signed by the Chairman of the meeting at which the proceedings
were held, or by the Chairman of the next succeeding meeting.

6.

Quorum
The quorum for the Audit Committee meeting shall be the majority of members present, which shall comprise
independent directors.

7.

Objectives
The principal objectives of the Audit Committee are to assist the Board in discharging its statutory duties and
responsibilities relating to accounting and reporting practices of the holding company and each of its subsidiaries. In
addition, the Audit Committee shall:-
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(a)

evaluate the quality of the audits performed by the internal and external auditors;

(b)

provide assurance that the financial information presented by management is relevant, reliable and timely;

(c)

oversee compliance with laws and regulations and observance of a proper code of conduct; and

(d)

determine the quality, adequacy and effectiveness of the Company's control environment.

Malaysian Genomics Resource Centre Berhad (Company No. 652790-V)

Audit Committee Report

Terms of Reference of the Audit Committee (cont’d)
8.

Authority
The Audit Committee shall, in accordance with a procedure to be determined by the Board and at the expense of the
Company,

9.

(a)

have explicit authority to investigate any matter within its terms of reference, the resources to do so, and full
access to information. All employees shall be directed to co-operate as requested by members of the Audit
Committee;

(b)

have full and unlimited/unrestricted access to all information and documents/resources which are required to
perform its duties, as well as to the internal and external auditors and senior management of the Company and
Group;

(c)

obtain independent professional or other advice and to invite outsiders with relevant experience to attend, if
necessary;

(d)

have direct communication channels with the external auditors and person(s) carrying out the internal audit function
or activity (if any);

(e)

where the Audit Committee is of the view that the matter reported by it to the Board has not been satisfactorily
resolved, resulting in a breach of the Listing Requirements, promptly report such matter to Bursa Securities; and

(f)

convene meetings with the external auditors, without the presence of executive members of the Audit Committee,
whenever deemed necessary.

Duties and Responsibilities
The duties and responsibilities of the Audit Committee are as follows:(a)

To consider the appointment of the external auditor, the audit fee and any question of resignation or dismissal;

(b)

To discuss with the external auditor before the audit commences, the nature and scope of the audit, and ensure
co-ordination where more than one audit firm is involved;

(c)

To review with the external auditor his evaluation of the system of internal controls and his audit report;

(d)

To review the quarterly and year-end financial statements of the Board, focusing particularly on –
•
•
•
•

any change in accounting policies and practices;
significant adjustments arising from the audit;
the going concern assumption; and
compliance with accounting standards and other legal requirements.

(e)

To discuss problems and reservations arising from the interim and final audits, and any matter the auditor may
wish to discuss (in the absence of management, where necessary);

(f)

To review the external auditor’s management letter and management’s response;
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Terms of Reference of the Audit Committee (cont’d)
9.

Duties and Responsibilities (cont’d)
(g)

To do the following, in relation to the internal audit function:•
•
•
•
•

(h)

To consider any related party transactions and conflict of interest situation that may arise within the Company
including any transaction, procedure or course of conduct that raises questions of management integrity;

(i)

To report its findings on the financial and management performance, and other material matters to the Board;

(j)

To consider the major findings of internal investigations and management’s response;

(k)

To verify the allocation of employees’ share option scheme (“ESOS”) in compliance with the criteria as stipulated
in the by-laws of ESOS of the Company, if any;

(l)

To determine the remit of the internal audit function;

(m)

To consider other topics as defined by the Board;

(n)

To advise the Board of Directors and make recommendation in respect of risk management as to the following matters:
•
•
•
•

(o)
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review the adequacy of the scope, functions, competency and resources of the internal audit function, and
ensure that it has the necessary authority to carry out its work;
review the internal audit programme and results of the internal audit process and, where necessary, ensure
that appropriate actions are taken on the recommendations of the internal audit function;
review any appraisal or assessment of the performance of members of the internal audit function;
approve any appointment or termination of senior staff members of the internal audit function; and
take cognissance of resignations of internal audit staff members and provide the resigning staff member an
opportunity to submit his reasons for resigning.

To monitor risk management processes and ensure that they are integrated into all core business processes,
and that the culture of the organisation reflects the risk consciousness of the Board;
Review the Risk Register and ensure that all risks are well managed;
Review the enterprise risk scorecard and determine the risks to be escalated to the Board once a year; and
Provide a consolidated risk and assurance report to the Board to support the statement relating to internal
control in the Company’s annual report; and

To consider and examine such other matters as the Audit Committee considers appropriate.
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Audit Committee Report

Summary of Activities During the Financial Year
In discharging their duties and responsibilities, the Committee did the following over the course of the four (4) meetings held
in the financial year under review:
•

Reviewed the quarterly financial results and annual audited financial statements of the Company, including the
announcements pertaining thereto, before recommending the same to the Board for approval and release of the
Company’s results to Bursa Securities;

•

Reviewed the audit planning memorandum of the external auditors on the statutory audit of the Company for the financial
year ended 30 June 2011;

•

Reviewed the results of, and issues arising from, the audit of the financial year end statements undertaken by the external
auditors, and examined the steps taken to resolve issues highlighted in reports to the Committee; and

•

Reviewed the internal audit plan and internal audit reports issued by the internal audit function, considered the findings
of internal audit investigations and management responses thereon, and ensured that appropriate actions were taken
on the recommendations issued by the internal auditors.
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Internal Control Review and Internal Audit Function
The Audit Committee is supported by an independent and adequately resourced internal audit function, in order to assist the
Audit Committee in the discharge of its duties and responsibilities.
The internal audit function of the Company is outsourced to KPMG Business Advisory Sdn Bhd (“KPMG”), an independent
professional services firm providing assessments on the adequacy, efficiency and effectiveness of the Company’s internal
control systems in anticipating key business process exposure to risk.
During the financial year ended 30 June 2011, the internal audit function carried out audits in accordance with the internal
audit plan approved by the Audit Committee and also other areas of significance that were recommended by the Management,
to the Audit Committee. The results of the internal audit reviews and the recommendations for enhancement of existing
controls, were presented to the Audit Committee at their quarterly meetings. The Audit Committee has full access to the
internal auditor and has received reports on all audits performed.
Major activities carried out by KPMG to assess the adequacy and integrity of the Company’s system of internal control using
a risk-based approach focusing on the following key processes:
a.
b.
c.
d.
e.

Related Party Transactions;
Financial Management;
Sales and Marketing;
Sequencing Analysis and Data Access Services; and
Information Systems.

Costs incurred by the Company in connection with the outsourced internal audit function in the financial year ended 30 June 2011
amounted to RM74,512.

48

Malaysian Genomics Resource Centre Berhad (Company No. 652790-V)

Statement of Directors’ Responsibility

The Directors are required to take reasonable steps to ensure that the financial statements of Malaysian Genomics Resource
Centre Berhad (“MGRC”) are properly drawn up in accordance with the financial reporting standards in Malaysia and the
provisions of the Companies Act, 1965 so as to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company as at the end
of the financial year and of the results and the cash flows of the Company for that year then ended.
The Directors consider that in preparing the financial statements for the financial year ended 30 June 2011 that:
•
•
•
•

the Company has adopted the appropriate accounting policies and has applied them consistently;
reasonable and prudent judgements and estimates have been made;
all applicable approved accounting standards in Malaysia have been followed; and
the financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis.

The Directors are also responsible for ensuring that the Company maintains accounting records that disclose with reasonable
accuracy at any time, the financial position of the Company and which enable them to ensure that the financial statements
comply with the Companies Act, 1965.
The Directors have general responsibilities to take such steps as are necessary to ensure that appropriate systems are
reasonably available to them to safeguard the assets of the Company, and to prevent and detect fraud and other irregularities
and material misstatements. Such systems, by their nature, can only provide reasonable and not absolute assurance against
material misstatement, loss or fraud.
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As a company pioneering the exciting space that is genomics, our
commitment is to stay at the forefront by continuously enhancing our
internal expertise and developing relevant and reliable services.
However, growth and productivity are not to be achieved at the expense
of responsibility. The common belief amongst today’s talent pool is that
employees choose employers who appear to match their beliefs and
values.
At MGRC, we are driven by a passion to explore the enormous potential
that genomics holds, and to help the life sciences community accelerate
research that could shape a better future for mankind. To achieve this,
we place great emphasis on accountability, reliability and integrity. We
also believe in leading responsibly and adding sustainable value to the
communities in which we operate.

Human Resource
The convergence of biology and information technology in our
industry demands highly-skilled knowledge workers who are
able to work seamlessly across these domains. Coupled with
the industry’s adolescence, this has posed a challenge for most
players, including MGRC, in recruiting employees who meet
these criteria.
Consequently, we believe that it is our duty to undertake
measures to address the issue from internal perspectives. We
recruit the best candidates from each field and provide these
employees with in-depth training so that they acquire the
necessary skills to undertake our commercial projects. Our
current workforce has shown significant adaptability to new
domains.
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At MGRC, we believe that corporate responsibility practice
begins with our people. Ongoing improvement to the working
conditions, environment and benefits for our employees has
always been a primary focus. Our on-the-job-training approach
has proven successful in nurturing bioinformatics expertise
among our employees.
Despite a number of our employees coming from a
non-biology background such as Computer Science, Software
Programming or Information Technology, continued
participation in ongoing tasks has enabled them to hit the
ground running and quickly master the subject matter.
Working on revolutionary and cutting-edge projects has
further honed their skills and capabilities to develop
sophisticated bioinformatics software and use that software
to analyse complex biological processes.
We encourage our staff to contribute ideas, and our human
development strategies are simultaneously carried out by
promoting self-learning and knowledge sharing across
technical and non-technical teams. In that respect, such twoway communication among employees is essential to
promote better conditions at work.
We also participate actively in local and overseas events
pertaining to our core business, which is genome sequencing
and analysis. Employees selected to attend these events are
thus exposed to the latest trends and developments in the
genomics space, as well as opportunities to meet eminent
scientists and captains of the industry.
The Company also invests in extracurricular activities to
strengthen the bond between employees by organising
annual team building excursions as well as subsidising weekly
sports activities such as badminton and futsal. We believe

that these human resource development efforts are nonexhaustive and we are proud of our low turnover rate with the
majority of our employees having been with the Company
since its inception.
Intership Programme
We welcome students who are keen to further their
knowledge in bioinformatics, and those who would like to gain
industrial experience to participate in our internship
programme. Through our relationship with the Malaysian
Biotechnology Corporation, we select suitable candidates
from its Biotechnology Entrepreneurship Special Training
(BeST) programme to provide hands-on industry exposure,
equipping them with essential skills and knowledge for
employment in biotechnology companies or biotechnologyrelated companies.
We also accept qualified post-graduate students to undertake
industry-based research under the tutelage of our Managing
Director and senior managers. From July 2010 to June 2011,
we were fortunate to have four interns who displayed great
potential to excel in bioinformatics and genomics. Of the four,
two were from Universiti Malaysia Sabah (UMS) and
Universiti Kebangsaan Malaysia (UKM) respectively; one was
a pre-university student while the other had just graduated
from high school.
It is imperative that MGRC contributes to the development
and enhancement of the Malaysian life sciences industry from
the educational perspectives. We hope that we could
formalise our internship programme in the near future
as it benefits us in identifying future candidates to provide
the country with the necessary talent pool and industry
successors.
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Corporate Social
Responsibility
We are deeply committed to fulfil our social obligations
as part of our ongoing contribution to the development
and progress of Malaysian society. As a wholly-owned
Malaysian company, we are keen to nurture and
propagate the understanding of bioinformatics and its
potential to the Malaysian public. In the same vein, we
are inspired to use our success to create a positive
impact on the community and Mother Nature.
1.

Awareness and Education
Our aim is to enhance R&D and commercialisation
activities for Malaysian universities and research
institutes, and to promote Malaysia’s bioinformatics
capabilities on a worldwide basis. Malaysia possesses
the necessary infrastructure and resources to become
a global bioinformatics centre, and MGRC hopes to play
a role in making that ambition come to fruition.
MGRC’s Awareness and Education programme is
divided into:
(i)

Eminent Speaker Series (ESS)
The ESS is a series of lectures where we invite
prominent experts from around the world to
highlight and present the latest research and
technologies in their respective fields within
genomics to the Malaysian biotechnology
community. The most recent speakers include

54

Malaysian Genomics Resource Centre Berhad (Company No. 652790-V)

Professor Chris Rawlings from Rothamsted
Research, UK, Professor Mervyn Bibb from John
Innes Centre (JIC), UK, and Professor Mauno
Vihinen from the University of Tampere, Finland.
(ii)

Introductory and Advanced Bioinformatics
Workshops
We regularly carry out bioinformatics workshops
at local institutions and universities to educate and
train participants in the underlying fundamentals
and principles of genomics and bioinformatics.
They are also guided on how to use our online
applications for their research or commercial
projects. From July 2010 to June 2011, more than
750 participants attended our workshops, and we
are confident that the number will continue to rise
with each passing year.

(iii) Wet Lab Training Programme
Recognising the importance of introducing
bioinformatics at the grassroot levels, we initiated
the Wet Lab Training Programme, where
secondary school students are given the
opportunity to conduct DNA experiments as a
means of grasping the concepts of molecular
biology and bioinformatics. The list of schools
visited includes SMK Bintang Utara and Sekolah
Alam Shah.

2.

Community Outreach
At MGRC, we feel blessed to be in this exciting new
space in the area of genomics and bioinformatics. Our
success thus far has been built upon commitment,
trust, integrity, and an overwhelming desire to help
propel the nation towards greater heights.
We strongly believe that our success thus far is not ours
alone, and that it should be shared among the Malaysian
community. It is through this belief that MGRC’s
Community Outreach Initiative was born. This is a
concerted and dedicated effort to give a little something
back to the community, where we hope to make a small
difference to those who may be facing some challenges
in their lives.
Employees are encouraged to participate in visits to
charity homes especially during the festive seasons.
Among the places that we have had the privilege of
visiting are Persatuan Insan Istimewa, Persatuan
Kebajikan Rumah Hatiku, Rumah Kebajikan Baitul
Hidayah, Kajang Caring Old Folks Home, WAKE Shelter
Home, Rumah Amal Kasih Bestari and Rumah Solehah.
We also continue to assist the PERTIWI Soup Kitchen
for four nights a week to distribute food to the homeless
and urban poor in Kuala Lumpur.

3.

Environment
As part of our commitment to use genomics and
bioinformatics as a tool to help preserve the
environment, we have embarked on an internallyfunded project to understand the Ganoderma
boninense fungus at the genome level. This soil-borne
fungus is a scourge of the oil palm plantations,
destroying the trees that they infect by causing basalstem rot disease.
We are now analysing the data generated from the
sequenced Ganoderma genome to gain an in-depth
view into what makes this fungus so potent, and the
genomic mechanisms that enable it to cause such
devastation to oil palm trees. Varieties of this fungus
also infect other trees, such as the coconut tree, which
causes havoc to the ecosystem. We hope that the
findings from our project will provide an answer as to
what genes make the Ganoderma pathogenic, and may
provide an insight as to how these genes can be
controlled, in order to reduce the extent of the damage
that the fungus can cause to the environment.
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Calendar of Events

EMINENT
SPEAKER SERIES
Jul 2010

BIOINFORMATICS
WORKSHOP SERIES

WET LAB
WORKSHOP SERIES

Genomics and Bioinformatics
for Medical Applications
Twintech International
University College of
Technology, Faculty of
Biotechnology
Genomics and Bioinformatics
for Agricultural Applications
Universiti Malaysia Sarawak,
Faculty of Resource Science
and Technology

Aug 2010 Supporting Systems
Biology with Data
Integration
Kuala Lumpur
Convention Centre

Genomics and Bioinformatics
for Microbial Applications
MGRC Training Lab

Sep 2010

Genomics and Bioinformatics
for Medical Applications
MGRC Training Lab

Genomics and Bioinformatics
for Medical Applications
Taylor's University College,
Faculty of Medicine, Pharmacy
and Health Sciences

Genomics and Bioinformatics
for General Applications
Universiti Teknologi MARA,
Faculty of Applied Sciences
Oct 2010

Genomics and Bioinformatics
for Microbial Applications
Universiti Malaysia
Terengganu, Institute of
Marine Biotechnology
Genomics and Bioinformatics
for Microbial Applications
Universiti Malaysia Pahang,
Faculty of Industrial Sciences
and Technology
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From DNA to
Bioinformatics
Kolej Islam Sultan
Alam Shah

EMINENT
SPEAKER SERIES
Nov 2010

BIOINFORMATICS
WORKSHOP SERIES

WET LAB
WORKSHOP SERIES

Workflows, Web Services and
Statistical Analysis
MGRC Training Lab
Genomics and Bioinformatics
for Medical Applications
Universiti Tunku Abdul Rahman,
Faculty of Science
Genomics and Bioinformatics
for Medical Applications
Monash University,
School of Medicine and
Health Sciences

Dec 2010

Genomics and Bioinformatics
for Medical Applications
Multimedia University,
Faculty of Industrial Sciences
and Technology
Genomics and Bioinformatics
for Medical Applications
Universiti Sains Malaysia,
School of Industrial Technology

Jan 2011

Genomics and Bioinformatics
for Medical Applications
Universiti Kebangsaan
Malaysia Medical Centre,
UKM Medical Molecular
Biology Institute (UMBI)
Genomics and Bioinformatics
for Medical Applications
International Islamic
University Malaysia, Faculty of
Biotechnology Engineering
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Calendar of Events

EMINENT
SPEAKER SERIES
Feb 2011 Genomic Approaches to
Antibiotic Discovery
Boulevard Hotel,
Mid-Valley

BIOINFORMATICS
WORKSHOP SERIES

WET LAB
WORKSHOP SERIES

Genomics and Bioinformatics
for General Applications
MGRC Training Lab
Genomics and Bioinformatics
for Agriculture Applications
Universiti Putra Malaysia,
Faculty of Agriculture

Mar 2011

Genomics and Bioinformatics
for Marine Applications
University of Malaya,
Faculty of Science

Apr 2011

Genomics and Bioinformatics
for Medical Applications
UCSI University, Faculty of
Applied Sciences

From DNA to
Bioinformatics
SMK Seri Bintang Utara,
Cheras

Genomics and Bioinformatics
for Medical Applications
TPM Academy,
School of Life Sciences
May 2011

Genomics and Bioinformatics
for Medical Applications
Universiti Sains Malaysia,
Human Genome Centre
Genomics and Bioinformatics
for Medical Applications
University of Malaya,
Faculty of Medicine

Jun 2011 Origin, Implications and
Prediction of Genetic
Variation Effects
Boulevard Hotel,
Mid-Valley

Genomics and Bioinformatics
for Zoology Applications
Universiti Malaysia Sarawak,
Faculty of Resource
Science and Technology
Malaysia
Genomics and Bioinformatics
for Microbial Applications
Malaysia University of Science
and Technology, Faculty of
Biotechnology
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From DNA to
Bioinformatics
Sekolah Sultan
Alam Shah
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Directors’ Report

The directors have pleasure in presenting their report together with the audited financial statements of the Company for the
financial year ended 30 June 2011.
Principal Activities
The Company's principal activities are providing genome sequencing and bioinformatics analysis services, and providing online
access to genomic data and bioinformatics applications.
There have been no significant changes to the nature of the Company's revenue-generating activities during the financial year.
Results
RM
Profit, net of tax

2,635,016

There were no material transfers to or from reserves or provisions during the financial year other than as disclosed in the financial
statements.
In the opinion of the directors, the results of the operations of the Company during the financial year were not substantially affected
by any item, transaction or event of a material and unusual nature.
Dividend
No dividend has been paid or declared by the Company since the end of the previous financial period.
The directors do not recommend any payment of dividend in respect of the current financial year ended 30 June 2011.
Directors
The names of the directors of the Company in office since the date of the last report and at the date of this report are:
Robert George Hercus @ Abdul Karim Hercus
Munirah binti Haji Abdul Hamid
Ahmad Fauzi bin Ali
Dato' Dr. Norraesah binti Haji Mohamad
Tan Sri Datuk (Dr) Rafiah binti Salim
Loh Lee Soon
Directors' Benefits
Neither at the end of the financial year, nor at any time during that year, did there subsist any arrangement to which the Company
was a party, whereby the directors might acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in or debentures of the Company
or any other body corporate.
Since the end of the previous financial period, no director has received or become entitled to receive a benefit (other than benefits
included in the aggregate amount of emoluments received or due and receivable by the directors or the fixed salary of a full time
employee of the Company as shown in Notes 7 and 8 to the financial statements) by reason of a contract made by the Company
or a related corporation with any director or with a firm of which the director is a member, or with a company in which the director
has a substantial financial interest.
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Directors' Interest
According to the register of directors’ shareholdings, the interests of directors in office at the end of the financial year in shares
of the Company and its related corporations during the financial year were as follows:
Number of Ordinary Shares of RM0.10 Each
At
1.7.2010

Bought

Sold

At
30.6.2011

-

80,000
100,000
100,000
140,000
100,000
110,000

-

80,000
100,000
100,000
140,000
100,000
110,000

Ordinary shares of the Company
Direct
Robert George Hercus @ Abdul Karim Hercus
Munirah binti Haji Abdul Hamid
Ahmad Fauzi bin Ali
Dato' Dr. Norraesah binti Haji Mohamad
Tan Sri Datuk (Dr) Rafiah binti Salim
Loh Lee Soon

Number of Ordinary Shares of RM1 Each
At
1.7.2010

Bought

Sold

At
30.6.2011

2,933,334
2,933,334
430,521

-

-

2,933,334
2,933,334
430,521

548,182
1,643,845

-

-

548,182
1,643,845

353
353
17,655

-

-

353
353
17,655

Ordinary shares of the
immediate holding company
- Synamatix Sdn Bhd
Indirect
Robert George Hercus @ Abdul Karim Hercus
Munirah binti Haji Abdul Hamid
Ahmad Fauzi bin Ali
Ordinary shares of the
ultimate holding company
- Neuramatix Sdn Bhd
Direct
Robert George Hercus @ Abdul Karim Hercus
Munirah binti Haji Abdul Hamid
Indirect
Robert George Hercus @ Abdul Karim Hercus *
Munirah binti Haji Abdul Hamid *
Ahmad Fauzi bin Ali
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Directors' Interest (cont’d)
Number of Ordinary Shares of RM1 Each
At
1.7.2010

Bought

Sold

At
30.6.2011

Direct
Robert George Hercus
@ Abdul Karim Hercus
Munirah binti Haji Abdul Hamid

27,432
82,296

-

-

27,432
82,296

Indirect
Robert George Hercus
@ Abdul Karim Hercus
Munirah binti Haji Abdul Hamid

640,080
640,080

-

-

640,080
640,080

Ordinary shares of the
related company
- Linguamatix Sdn Bhd

*

Included the interest of children of the directors pursuant to Section 134(12)(c) of the Companies (Amendment) Act, 2007.

By virtue of Section 6A of the Companies Act, 1965, Robert George Hercus @ Abdul Karim Hercus and Munirah binti Haji Abdul
Hamid are also deemed to have interest in the shares of the Company and its related corporations to the extent that the ultimate
holding company has an interest.
Issue of Shares
During the financial year, the Company increased its issued and paid-up ordinary share capital from RM7,700,048 to RM9,410,048
by way of the issuance of 17,100,000 ordinary shares of RM0.10 each at an issue price of RM1.08 per ordinary share, for cash,
for additional working capital purposes.
The new ordinary shares issued during the financial year ranked pari passu in all respects with the existing ordinary shares of the
Company.
Other Statutory Information
(a)

62

Before the statement of comprehensive income and statement of financial position of the Company were made out, the
directors took reasonable steps:
(i)

to ascertain that proper action had been taken in relation to the writing off of bad debts and the making of allowance
for doubtful debts and satisfied themselves that there were no known bad debts and that no allowance for doubtful
debts was necessary; and

(ii)

to ensure that any current assets which were unlikely to realise their values as shown in the accounting records in the
ordinary course of business had been written down to an amount which they might be expected so to realise.
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Other Statutory Information (cont’d)
(b)

At the date of this report, the directors are not aware of any circumstances which would render:
(i)

it necessary to write off any bad debts or to make any allowance for doubtful debts in respect of the financial
statements of the Company; and

(ii)

the values attributed to the current assets in the financial statements of the Company misleading.

(c)

At the date of this report, the directors are not aware of any circumstances which have arisen which would render adherence
to the existing method of valuation of assets or liabilities of the Company misleading or inappropriate.

(d)

At the date of this report, the directors are not aware of any circumstances not otherwise dealt with in this report or financial
statements of the Company which would render any amount stated in the financial statements misleading.

(e)

As at the date of this report, there does not exist:

(f)

(i)

any charge on the assets of the Company which has arisen since the end of the financial year which secures the
liabilities of any other person; or

(ii)

any contingent liability of the Company which has arisen since the end of the financial year.

In the opinion of the directors:
(i)

no contingent or other liability has become enforceable or is likely to become enforceable within the period of twelve
months after the end of the financial year which will or may affect the ability of the Company to meet its obligations
when they fall due; and

(ii)

no item, transaction or event of a material and unusual nature has arisen in the interval between the end of the financial
year and the date of this report which is likely to affect substantially the results of the operations of the Company for
the financial year in which this report is made.

Auditors
The auditors, Ernst & Young, have expressed their willingness to continue in office.
Signed on behalf of the Board in accordance with a resolution of the directors dated 7 October 2011.

Robert George Hercus @ Abdul Karim Hercus

Munirah binti Haji Abdul Hamid
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Statement by Directors
Pursuant to Section 169(15) of the Companies Act, 1965

We, Robert George Hercus @ Abdul Karim Hercus and Munirah binti Haji Abdul Hamid, being two of the directors of
Malaysian Genomics Resource Centre Berhad, do hereby state that, in the opinion of the directors, the accompanying financial
statements set out on pages 67 to 100 are drawn up in accordance with the Financial Reporting Standards and the Companies
Act, 1965 in Malaysia so as to give a true and fair view of the financial position of the Company for the year ended 30 June 2011
and of the results and the cash flows of the Company for the year then ended.
The information set out in Note 26 on page 100 to the financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the Guidance
on Special Matter No.1, Determination of Realised and Unrealised Profits or Losses in the Context of Disclosure Pursuant to Bursa
Malaysia Securities Berhad Listing Requirement, as issued by the Malaysian Institute of Accountants.
Signed on behalf of the Board in accordance with a resolution of the directors dated 7 October 2011.

Robert George Hercus @ Abdul Karim Hercus

Munirah binti Haji Abdul Hamid

Statutory Declaration
Pursuant to Section 169(16) of the Companies Act, 1965

I, Robert George Hercus @ Abdul Karim Hercus, being the director primarily responsible for the financial management of
Malaysian Genomics Resource Centre Berhad, do solemnly and sincerely declare that the accompanying financial statements set
out on pages 67 to 100 are in my opinion correct, and I make this solemn declaration conscientiously believing the same to be
true and by virtue of the provisions of the Statutory Declarations Act, 1960.

Subscribed and solemnly declared
by the abovenamed
at Kuala Lumpur in the Federal Territory
on 7 October 2011.

Before me,
R.VASUGI AMMAL, PJK (NO: W480)
Commissioner for Oaths
Kuala Lumpur, Malaysia.
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Independent Auditors’ Report
to the Members of Malaysian Genomics Resource Centre Berhad
(Company No. 652790-V) (Incorporated in Malaysia)

Report on the Financial Statements
We have audited the financial statements of Malaysian Genomics Resource Centre Berhad, which comprise the statement of
financial position as at 30 June 2011 of the Company, and the statement of comprehensive income, statement of changes in
equity and statement of cash flows of the Company for the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies
and other explanatory notes, as set out on pages 67 to 100.
Directors’ Responsibility for the Financial Statements
The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance
with the Financial Reporting Standards and the Companies Act, 1965 in Malaysia, and for such internal controls as the directors
determine are necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due
to fraud or error.
Auditors’ Responsibility
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance
with approved standards on auditing in Malaysia. Those standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.
An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements.
The procedures selected depend on our judgement, including the assessment of risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, we consider internal control relevant to the entity’s
preparation of financial statements that give a true and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also
includes evaluating the appropriateness of the accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made
by the directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.
Opinion
In our opinion, the financial statements have been properly drawn up in accordance with the Financial Reporting Standards and
the Companies Act, 1965 in Malaysia so as to give a true and fair view of the financial position of the Company as at 30 June 2011
and of its financial performance and cash flows for the year then ended.
Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
In accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act, 1965 in Malaysia, we also report that in our opinion, the accounting
and other records and the registers required by the Act to be kept by the Company have been properly kept in accordance with
the provisions of the Act.
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Independent Auditors’ Report
to the Members of Malaysian Genomics Resource Centre Berhad
(Company No. 652790-V) (Incorporated in Malaysia)

Other Matters
The supplementary information set out in Note 26 on page 100 is disclosed to meet the requirement of Bursa Malaysia Securities
Berhad. The directors are responsible for the preparation of the supplementary information in accordance with Guidance on Special
Matter No. 1, Determination of Realised and Unrealised Profits or Losses in the Context of Disclosure Pursuant to Bursa Malaysia
Securities Berhad Listing Requirements, as issued by the Malaysian Institute of Accountants ("MIA Guidance") and the directive
of Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad. In our opinion, the supplementary information is prepared, in all material respects, in
accordance with the MIA Guidance and the directive of Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad.
This report is made solely to the members of the Company, as a body, in accordance with Section 174 of the Companies Act,
1965 in Malaysia and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility to any other person for the content of this report.

Ernst & Young
AF: 0039
Chartered Accountants
Kuala Lumpur, Malaysia
7 October 2011
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Statement of Comprehensive Income
For the financial year ended 30 June 2011

Revenue

Note

1.7.2010
to
30.6.2011
RM

1.6.2009
to
30.6.2010
RM

4

12,146,185

15,778,810

531,111

204,969

(474,085)
(270,833)
(1,304,063)
(4,573,820)
(1,446)

Other item of income
Interest income on fixed deposits
Other items of expense
Marketing and distribution
Lab Consumables
Exclusive license fees
System maintenance cost
Administrative expenses
Finance costs

5

(628,150)
(1,140,447)
(250,000)
(1,203,750)
(6,677,913)
-

Profit before tax

6

2,777,036

9 ,359,532

Income tax expense
Profit, net of tax, representing total
comprehensive income

9

(142,020)

(43,278)

2,635,016

9,316,254

2.93

12.10

Earnings per share attributable to
equity holders of the Company (sen)

10

The accompanying accounting policies and explanatory notes form an integral part of the financial statements.

Annual Report 2011

67

MGRC 2011-pg65-110-pantone:MGRC 05/11/2011 4:35 PM Page 68

Statement of Financial Position
As at 30 June 2011

Note

2011
RM

2010
RM

11
12

5,356,472
4,836,836

680,151
5,447,805

10,193,308

6,127,956

623,126
3,020,068
1,426,461
22,368,770

469,754
2,743,148
9,637,203

27,438,425

12,850,105

37,631,733

18,978,061

4,903,308
52,168

4,226,873
-

4,955,476

4,226,873

22,482,949

8,623,232

9,410,048
14,755,041
8,511,168

7,700,048
1,174,988
5,876,152

Total equity

32,676,257

14,751,188

Total equity and liabilities

37,631,733

18,978,061

Assets
Non-current assets
Plant and equipment
Intangible asset

Current assets
Inventories
Trade and other receivables
Other current assets
Cash and bank balances

13
14
16
17

Total assets
Equity and liabilities
Current liabilities
Trade and other payables
Income tax payable

18

Net current assets
Equity attributable to owners of the parent
Share capital
Share premium
Retained earnings

19
19
20

The accompanying accounting policies and explanatory notes form an integral part of the financial statements.
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Statement of Changes in Equity
For the financial year ended 30 June 2011

Note
Opening balance
at 1 July 2010
Total comprehensive
income
Transactions with owners
Issue of ordinary shares
Share issuance expenses
Total transactions with owners
Closing balance
at 30 June 2011
Opening balance
at 1 June 2009
Total comprehensive
income
Transactions with owners
Dividend
Issue of ordinary shares:
Bonus issue
Total transactions with owners
Closing balance
at 30 June 2010

19
19

Equity,
total
RM

Non-Distributable
Share
Share
Capital
Premium
RM
RM

Distributable
Retained
Earnings
RM

14,751,188

7,700,048

1,174,988

5,876,152

2,635,016

-

-

2,635,016

18,468,000
(3,177,947)

1,710,000
-

16,758,000
(3,177,947)

-

15,290,053

1,710,000

13,580,053

-

32,676,257

9,410,048

14,755,041

8,511,168

15,434,934

1,925,012

1,174,988

12,334,934

9,316,254

-

-

9,316,254

(10,000,000)

-

-

(10,000,000)

-

5,775,036

-

(5,775,036)

(10,000,000)

5,775,036

-

(15,775,036)

14,751,188

7,700,048

1,174,988

5,876,152

The accompanying accounting policies and explanatory notes form an integral part of the financial statements.
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Statement of Cash Flows
For the financial year ended 30 June 2011

1.7.2010
to
30.6.2011
RM

1.6.2009
to
30.6.2010
RM

2,777,036

9,359,532

421,697
610,969
(149)
(531,111)

272,802
661,882
1,052
(204,969)

501,406

730,767

Operating cash flows before changes in working capital

3,278,442

10,090,299

Changes in working capital
Receivables
Inventories
Payables

(1,233,627)
(623,126)
676,435

6,836,280
(9,542,605)

Total changes in working capital

(1,180,318)

(2,706,325)

Cash flows from operations
Interest paid
Income taxes paid

2,098,124
(89,852)

7,383,974
(1,052)
(61,529)

Net cash flows from operating activities

2,008,272

7,321,393

Investing activities
Interest received
Proceed from disposal of equipment
Purchase of plant and equipment

531,111
150
(5,098,019)

204,969
(470,001)

(4,566,758)

(265,032)

Note
Operating activities
Profit before tax
Adjustments for:
Depreciation of plant and equipment
Amortisation of intangible asset
Hire purchase interest
Gain on disposal of equipment
Interest income

11
12
5

Total adjustments

Net cash flows used in investing activities
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Statement of Cash Flows
For the financial year ended 30 June 2011

1.7.2010
to
30.6.2011
RM

1.6.2009
to
30.6.2010
RM

18,468,000
(3,177,947)
-

(37,712)
(10,000,000)

Net cash flows from/(used in) financing activities

15,290,053

(10,037,712)

Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year/period

12,731,567
9,637,203

(2,981,351)
12,618,554

22,368,770

9,637,203

Note
Financing activities
Proceeds from issuance of shares
Share issuance expenses
Repayment of hire purchase
Dividend paid

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year/period

19
19

17

The accompanying accounting policies and explanatory notes form an integral part of the financial statements.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
For the financial year ended 30 June 2011

1.

Corporate Information
The Company is a public limited liability company incorporated and domiciled in Malaysia, and was listed on the ACE Market
of Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad on 5 October 2010. The registered office of the Company is Level 7, Menara Milenium,
Jalan Damanlela, Pusat Bandar Damansara, Damansara Heights, 50490 Kuala Lumpur. The principal place of business of
the Company is 27-9, Level 9, Signature Office, Bandar Mid Valley, 59200 Kuala Lumpur.
The immediate holding company of the Company is Synamatix Sdn Bhd and the ultimate holding company of the Company
is Neuramatix Sdn Bhd.
The Company's principal activities are providing genome sequencing and bioinformatics analysis services, and providing
online access to genomic data and bioinformatics applications. There have been no significant changes to the nature of the
Company's revenue-generating activities during the financial year.
The financial statements were authorised for issue by the Board of Directors in accordance with a resolution of the directors
on 7 October 2011.

2.

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
2.1

Basis of preparation
The financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with Financial Reporting Standards
and the Companies Act, 1965 in Malaysia. At the beginning of the current financial year, the Company adopted new
and revised FRS which are mandatory for financial periods beginning on or after 1 January 2010 as described fully in
Note 2.2.
The financial statements of the Company have been prepared on a historical cost basis.
The financial statements are presented in Ringgit Malaysia (RM).

2.2

Changes in accounting policies
The accounting policies adopted are consistent with those of the previous financial year except as follows:
On 1 July 2010, the Company adopted the following new and amended FRSs and IC Interpretations mandatory for
annual financial periods beginning on or after 1 January 2010.
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

•
•
•
•
•

72

FRS 1 First-time Adoption of Financial Reporting Standards
FRS 7 Financial Instruments: Disclosures
FRS 8 Operating Segments
FRS 101 Presentation of Financial Statements (Revised)
FRS 123 Borrowing Costs
FRS 139 Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement
Amendments to FRS 1 First-time Adoption of Financial Reporting Standards and FRS 127 Consolidated and
Separate Financial Statements: Cost of an Investment in a Subsidiary, Jointly Controlled Entity
or Associate
Amendments to FRS 138 Intangible Assets
Amendments to FRS 132 Financial Instruments: Presentation
Amendments to FRS 139 Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement, FRS 7 Financial Instruments:
Disclosures and IC Interpretation 9 Reassessment of Embedded Derivatives
Improvements to FRS issued in 2009
IC Interpretation 10 Interim Financial Reporting and Impairment
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Notes to the Financial Statements
For the financial year ended 30 June 2011

2.

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (cont’d)
2.2

Changes in accounting policies (cont’d)
FRS 4 Insurance Contracts, TR i-3 Presentation of Financial Statements of Islamic Financial Institutions, FRS 2 Sharebased Payment – Vesting Conditions Cancellations, IC Interpretation 9 Reassessment of Embedded Derivatives, IC
Interpretation 11 FRS 2 – Group and Treasury Share Transactions, Amendments to FRS 2 Share-based Payment,
Amendments to FRS 5 Non-current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operation, Amendments to FRS 132:
Classification of Rights Issues, IC Interpretation 12 Service Concession Arrangements, IC Interpretation 13 Customer
Loyalty Programmes, IC Interpretation 14 FRS 119 – The Limit on a Defined Benefit Asset Funding Requirements and
IC Interpretation 17 Distributions of Non-cash Assets to Owners and their Interaction are also effective for annual
periods beginning on or after 1 January 2010. These FRSs are, however, not applicable to the Company.
Adoption of the standards and interpretations did not have any effect on the financial performance position of the
Company except for those discussed below:
FRS 7 Financial Instruments: Disclosures
Prior to 1 January 2010, information about financial instruments was disclosed in accordance with the requirements
of FRS 132 Financial Instruments: Disclosure and Presentation. FRS 7 introduces new disclosures to improve the
information about financial instruments. It requires the disclosure of qualitative and quantitative information about
exposure to risks arising from financial instruments, including specified minimum disclosures about credit risk, liquidity
risk and market risk, including sensitivity analysis to market risk.
The Company has applied FRS 7 prospectively in accordance with the transitional provisions. Hence, the new
disclosures have not been applied to the comparatives. The new disclosures are included throughout the Company’s
financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2011.
FRS 8 Operating Segments
FRS 8, which replaces FRS 114 Segment Reporting, specifies how an entity should report information about its
operating segments, based on information about the components of the entity that is available to the chief operating
decision maker for the purposes of allocating resources to the segments and assessing their performance. The
Standard also requires the disclosure of information about the products and services provided by the segments, the
geographical areas in which the Company operates, and revenue from the Company’s major customers. The
management monitors the operating results of the Company as a whole for the purpose of making decisions about
resource allocation and performance assessment. Accordingly, the Company has only single reportable segments for
the year under review as well as the foreseeable future.
FRS 101 Presentation of Financial Statements (Revised)
The revised FRS 101 introduces changes in the presentation and disclosures of financial statements. The revised
Standard separates owner and non-owner changes in equity. The statement of changes equity includes only details of
transactions with owners. The Standard also introduces the statement of comprehensive income, with all items of
income and expense recognised in profit or loss, together all other items of recognised income and expense recognised
directly in equity, either in one single statement, or in two linked statements. The Company has elected to present
this statement as one single statement.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
For the financial year ended 30 June 2011

2.

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (cont’d)
2.2

Changes in accounting policies (cont’d)
FRS 101 Presentation of Financial Statements (Revised) (cont’d)
In addition, a statement of financial position is required at the beginning of the earliest comparative period following a
change in accounting policy, the correction of an error or the classification of items in the financial statements.
The revised FRS 101 also requires the Company to make new disclosures to enable users of the financial statements
to evaluate the Company’s objectives, policies and processes for managing capital.
The revised FRS 101 was adopted retrospectively by the Company.
FRS 139 Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement
FRS 139 establishes principles for recognising and measuring financial assets, financial liabilities and some
contracts to buy and sell non-financial items. The Company have adopted FRS 139 prospectively on 1 July 2010 in
accordance with the transitional provisions. The are no material effects arising from the adoption of
this Standard.
•

Impairment of trade receivables
Prior to 1 July 2010, allowance for doubtful debts was recognised when it was considered uncollectible. Upon
the adoption of FRS 139, an impairment loss is recognised when there is objective evidence that an impairment
loss has been incurred. The amount of the loss is measured as the difference between the receivable’s carrying
amount and the present value of the estimated future cash flows discounted at the receivable’s original effective
interest rate. As at 1 July 2010, the Company has measured the allowance for impairment losses as at that date
in accordance with FRS 139 and none of the Company trade receivables have exposure to losses arising from
default in payment and no credit risk is inherent based on the Company's operation historical experience in
collection. Therefore, no allowance for impairment losses has been recognised as an adjustment to the opening
balance of retained earnings.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
For the financial year ended 30 June 2011

2.

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (cont’d)
2.3

Standards issued but not yet effective
The Company has not adopted the following standards and interpretations that have been issued but not
yet effective:

Description
Amendments to IC Interpretation 13: Improvements to FRSs (2010)
Amendments to FRS 1: Limited Exemption from Comparative
FRS 7 Disclosures for First-time Adopters
Amendments to FRS 1: Additional Exemptions for First-time Adopters
Amendments to FRS 2: Group Cash-settled Share Based Payments Transactions
Amendments to FRS 3: Improvements to FRSs (2010)
Amendments to FRS 7: Improving Disclosures about Financial Instruments
Amendments to FRS 7: Improvements to FRSs (2010)
Amendments to FRS 101: Improvements to FRSs (2010)
Amendments to FRS 121: Improvements to FRSs (2010)
Amendments to FRS 128: Improvements to FRSs (2010)
Amendments to FRS 131: Improvements to FRSs (2010)
Amendments to FRS 132: Improvements to FRSs (2010)
Amendments to FRS 134: Improvements to FRSs (2010)
Amendments to FRS 139: Improvements to FRSs (2010)
IC Interpretation 4 Determining whether an Arrangement contains a Lease
IC Interpretation 18 Transfer of Assets from Customers
TR 3 Guidance of Transition to IFRSs
TR i-4 Shariah Disclosures Compliant Sale Contracts
FRS 124 Related Party Disclosures
IC Interpretation 15 Agreements for the Construction of Real Estate

Effective for annual periods
beginning on or after
1 January 2011
1 January 2011
1 January 2011
1 January 2011
1 January 2011
1 January 2011
1 January 2011
1 January 2011
1 January 2011
1 January 2011
1 January 2011
1 January 2011
1 January 2011
1 January 2011
1 January 2011
1 January 2011
1 January 2011
1 January 2011
1 January 2012
1 January 2012

Except for the new disclosures required under the Amendments to FRS 7, the directors expect that the adoption of
the other standards and interpretations above will have no material impact on the financial statements in the period of
initial application.
2.4

Foreign currency
(a)

Functional and presentation currency
The financial statements of the Company are measured using the currency of the primary economic environment
in which the entity operates (“the functional currency”). The financial statements are presented in Ringgit
Malaysia (RM), which is also the Company's functional currency.
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2.

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (cont’d)
2.4

Foreign currency (cont’d)
(b)

Foreign currency transactions
Transactions in foreign currencies are measured in the respective functional currencies of the Company and are
recorded on initial recognition in the functional currencies at exchange rates approximating those ruling at the
transaction dates. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the rate of
exchange ruling at the reporting date. Non-monetary items denominated in foreign currencies that are measured
at historical cost are translated using the exchange rates as at the dates of the initial transactions. Non-monetary
items denominated in foreign currencies measured at fair value are translated using the exchange rates at the
date when the fair value was determined.
Exchange differences arising on the translation of non-monetary items carried at fair value are included in profit
or loss for the period except for the differences arising on the translation of non-monetary items in respect of
which gains and losses are recognised directly in equity. Exchange differences arising from such non-monetary
items are also recognised directly in equity.

2.5

Plant and equipment
All items of plant and equipment are initially recorded at cost. The cost of an item of plant and equipment is recognised
as an asset if, and only if, it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Company
and the cost of the item can be measured reliably.
Subsequent to recognition, plant and equipment and furniture and fixtures are measured at cost less accumulated
depreciation and accumulated impairment losses. When significant parts of plant and equipment are required to be
replaced in intervals, the Company recognises such parts as individual assets with specific useful lives and depreciation,
respectively. Likewise, when a major inspection is performed, its cost is recognised in the carrying amount of the plant
and equipment as a replacement if the recognition criteria are satisfied. All other repair and maintenance costs are
recognised in profit loss as incurred.
Depreciation is computed on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of the assets as follows:
Computer hardware and software
Development servers
Laboratory equipment
Furniture, fittings and office equipment
Renovations and air-conditioners
Books and logo
Motor vehicles

50%
25%
10 - 20%
10%
10%
10%
20%

The carrying values of plant and equipment are reviewed for impairment when events or changes circumstances
indicate that the carrying value may not be recoverable.
The residual value, useful life and depreciation method are reviewed at each financial year-end, and adjusted
prospectively, if appropriate.
An item of plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected
from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss on derecognition of the asset is included in the profit or loss in the year the
asset is derecognised.
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2.

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (cont’d)
2.6

Intangible assets
Intangible assets acquired are measured initially at cost. Following initial acquisition, intangible assets are measured
at cost less any accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment losses.
Intangible assets with finite useful lives are amortised over their estimated useful lives and assessed for impairment
whenever there is an indication that the intangible assets may be impaired. The amortisation period and the amortisation
method are reviewed at least at each financial year-end. Changes in the expected useful life or the expected pattern
of consumption of future economic benefits embodied in the assets are accounted for by changing the amortisation
period or method, as appropriate, and are treated as changes in accounting estimates. The amortisation expense on
intangible assets with finite lives is recognised in profit or loss.
Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives or not yet available for use are tested for impairment annually, or more
frequently if the events and circumstances indicate that the carrying value may be impaired either individually or at the
cash-generating unit level. Such intangible assets are not amortised. The useful lives of intangible assets with indefinite
useful lives are reviewed annually to determine whether the useful life assessment continues to be supportable. If
not, the change in useful life from indefinite to finite is made on a prospective basis.
Gains or losses arising from derecognition of intangible assets are measured as the difference between the net disposal
proceeds and the carrying amount of the assets and are recognised in profit or loss when the assets are derecognised.
Software licenses
Software licenses are amortised on a straight line basis over 10 years.

2.7

Impairment of non-financial assets
The Company assesses at each reporting date whether there is an indication that an asset may be impaired. If any
such indication exists, or when an annual impairment assessment for an asset is required, the Company makes an
estimate of the asset’s recoverable amount.
An asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs to sell and its value in use. For the
purpose of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which there are separately identifiable
cash flows (cash-generating units (“CGU”)).
In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows expected to be generated by the asset are discounted to
their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money
and the risks specific to the asset. Where the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset
is written down to its recoverable amount. Impairment losses recognised in respect of a CGU or groups of CGUs are
allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to those units or groups of units and then, to
reduce the carrying amount of the other assets in the unit or groups of units on a pro-rata basis.
Impairment losses are recognised in profit or loss except for assets that are previously revalued where the revaluation
was taken to other comprehensive income. In this case the impairment is also recognised in other comprehensive
income up to the amount of any previous revaluation.
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2.

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (cont’d)
2.7

Impairment of non-financial assets (cont’d)
An assessment is made at each reporting date as to whether there is any indication that previously recognised
impairment losses may no longer exist or may have decreased. A previously recognised impairment loss is reversed
only if there has been a change in the estimates used to determine the asset’s recoverable amount since the last
impairment loss was recognised. If that is the case, the carrying amount of the asset is increased to its recoverable
amount. That increase cannot exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation, had
no impairment loss been recognised previously. Such reversal is recognised in profit or loss unless the asset is
measured at revalued amount, in which case the reversal is treated as a revaluation increase. Impairment loss on
goodwill is not reversed in a subsequent period.

2.8

Financial assets
Financial assets are recognised in the statements of financial position when, and only when, the Company become a
party to the contractual provisions of the financial instrument.
When financial assets are recognised initially, they are measured at fair value, plus, in the case of financial assets not
at fair value through profit or loss, directly attributable transaction costs.
The Company determines the classification of their financial assets at initial recognition, and the categories include
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss, loans and receivables, held-to-maturity investments and availablefor-sale financial assets.
(a)

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
Financial assets are classified as financial assets at fair value through profit or loss if they are held for trading or
are designated as such upon initial recognition. Financial assets held for trading are derivatives (including
separated embedded derivatives) or financial assets acquired principally for the purpose of selling in the near
term.
Subsequent to initial recognition, financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are measured at fair value.
Any gains or losses arising from changes in fair value are recognised in profit or loss. Net gains or net losses on
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss do not include exchange differences, interest and dividend
income. Exchange differences, interest and dividend income on financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss are recognised separately in profit or loss as part of other losses or other income.
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss could be presented as current or non-current. Financial assets
that are held primarily for trading purposes are presented as current whereas financial assets that are not
held primarily for trading purposes are presented as current or non-current based on the
settlement date.
The Company has not designated any financial assets as at fair value through profit or loss.
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2.

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (cont’d)
2.8

Financial assets (cont’d)
(b)

Loans and receivables
Financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market are classified as
loans and receivables.
Subsequent to initial recognition, loans and receivables are measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest method. Gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss when the loans and receivables are
derecognised or impaired, and through the amortisation process.
Loans and receivables are classified as current assets, except for those having maturity dates later than 12
months after the reporting date which are classified as non-current.

(c)

Held-to-maturity investments
Financial assets with fixed or determinable payments and fixed maturity are classified as held-to-maturity when
the Company has the positive intention and ability to hold the investment to maturity.
Subsequent to initial recognition, held-to-maturity investments are measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest method. Gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss when the held-to-maturity investments are
derecognised or impaired, and through the amortisation process.
Held-to-maturity investments are classified as non-current assets, except for those having maturity within 12
months after the reporting date which are classified as current.
The Company has not classified any financial assets as held-to-maturity investments.

(d)

Available-for-sale financial assets
Available-for-sale financial assets are financial assets that are designated as available for sale or are not classified
in any of the three preceding categories.
After initial recognition, available-for-sale financial assets are measured at fair value. Any gains or losses from
changes in fair value of the financial assets are recognised in other comprehensive income, except that
impairment losses, foreign exchange gains and losses on monetary instruments and interest calculated using
the effective interest method are recognised in profit or loss. The cumulative gain or loss previously recognised
in other comprehensive income is reclassified from equity to profit or loss as a reclassification adjustment when
the financial asset derecognised. Interest income calculated using the effective interest method is recognised in
profit or loss. Dividends on an available-for-sale equity instrument are recognised in profit or loss when the
Company's right to receive payment is established.
Investments in equity instruments whose fair value cannot be reliably measured are measured cost less
impairment loss.
Available-for-sale financial assets are classified as non-current assets unless they are expected to be realised
within 12 months after the reporting date.
The Company has not classified any financial assets as available-for-sale financial assets.
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2.

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (cont’d)
2.8

Financial assets (cont’d)
A financial asset is derecognised when the contractual right to receive cash flows from the asset has expired.
On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the difference between the carrying amount and the sum of the
consideration received and any cumulative gain or loss that had been recognised in other comprehensive income is
recognised in profit or loss.
Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within the
period generally established by regulation or convention in the marketplace concerned. All regular way purchases and
sales of financial assets are recognised or derecognised on the trade date i.e., the date that the Company commits to
purchase or sell the asset.

2.9

Impairment of financial assets
The Company assesses at each reporting date whether there is any objective evidence that a financial asset is impaired.
Trade and other receivables and other financial assets carried at amortised cost
To determine whether there is objective evidence that an impairment loss on financial assets has been incurred, the
Company considers factors such as the probability of insolvency or significant financial difficulties of the debtor and
default or significant delay in payments. For certain categories of financial assets, such as trade receivables, assets
that are assessed not to be impaired individually are subsequently assessed for impairment on a collective basis based
on similar risk characteristics. Objective evidence of impairment for a portfolio of receivables could include the
Company’s past experience of collecting payments, an increase in the number of delayed payments in the portfolio
past the average credit period and observable changes in national or local economic conditions that correlate with
default on receivables.
If any such evidence exists, the amount of impairment loss is measured as the difference between the asset’s carrying
amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows discounted at the financial asset’s original effective
interest rate. The impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss.
The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by the impairment loss directly for all financial assets with the
exception of trade receivables, where the carrying amount is reduced through the use of an allowance account. When
a trade receivable becomes uncollectible, it is written off against the allowance account.
If in a subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss decreases and the decrease can be related objectively
to an event occurring after the impairment was recognised, the previously recognised impairment loss is reversed to
the extent that the carrying amount of the asset does not exceed its amortised cost at the reversal date. The amount
of reversal is recognised in profit or loss.

2.10 Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and on hand and demand deposits that are readily convertible to
known amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.
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2.

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (cont’d)
2.11 Inventories
Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their
present location and condition are costs of purchase of goods and are determined on a first-in first-out basis.
Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less estimated costs of completion
and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale.
2.12 Provisions
Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event,
it is probable that an outflow of economic resources will be required to settle obligation and the amount of the obligation
can be estimated reliably.
Provisions are reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimate. If it is no longer
probable that an outflow of economic resources will be required to settle the obligation, the provision is reversed. If
the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a current pre-tax rate that reflects,
where appropriate, the risks specific to the liability. When discounting is used, the increase in the provision due to the
passage of time is recognised as a finance cost.
2.13 Financial liabilities
Financial liabilities are classified according to the substance of the contractual arrangements entered into and the
definition of a financial liability.
Financial liabilities, within the scope of FRS 139, are recognised in the statement of financial position when, and only
when, the Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the financial instrument. Financial liabilities are
classified as either financial liabilities at fair value through profit loss or other financial liabilities.
a)

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include financial liabilities held for trading and financial
liabilities designated upon initial recognition as at fair value through profit or loss.
Financial liabilities held for trading include derivatives entered into by the Company that do not meet the hedge
accounting criteria. Derivative liabilities are initially measured at fair value and subsequently stated at fair value,
with any resultant gains or losses recognised in profit or loss. Net gains or losses on derivatives include exchange
differences.
The Company has not designated any financial liabilities as at fair value through profit or loss.

b)

Other financial liabilities
The Company's other financial liabilities include trade payables and other payables.
Trade and other payables are recognised initially at fair value plus directly attributable transaction costs and
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method.
For other financial liabilities, gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss when the liabilities are derecognised,
and through the amortisation process.
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2.

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (cont’d)
2.13 Financial liabilities (cont’d)
A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is extinguished. When an existing financial
liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability
are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as a derecognition of the original liability and
the recognition of a new liability, and the difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognised in profit or loss.
2.14 Employee benefits
Defined contribution plans
The Company participates in the national pension schemes as defined by the laws of the countries which it has
operations. Malaysian companies make contributions to the Employee Provident Fund in Malaysia, a defined
contribution pension scheme. Contributions to defined contribution pension schemes are recognised as an expense
in the period in which the related service is performed.
2.15 Leases
As lessee
Finance leases, which transfer to the Company substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of the
leased item, are capitalised at the inception of the lease at the fair value of the leased asset or, if lower, at the present
value of the minimum lease payments. Any initial direct costs are also added to the amount capitalised. Lease payments
are apportioned between the finance charges and reduction of the lease liability so as to achieve a constant rate of
interest on the remaining balance the liability. Finance charges are charged to profit or loss. Contingent rents, if any,
are charged as expenses in the periods in which they are incurred.
Leased assets are depreciated over the estimated useful life of the asset. However, if there is no reasonable certainty
that the Company will obtain ownership by the end of the lease term, the asset depreciated over the shorter of the
estimated useful life and the lease term.
Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense in profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the lease term.
The aggregate benefit of incentives provided by the lessor is recognised as a reduction of rental expense over the
lease term on a straight-line basis.
2.16 Revenue
Revenue is recognised to the extent when it is probable that the economic benefits associated with the transaction
will flow to the Company and the revenue can be reliably measured.
a)

Services rendered
Revenue is recognised by reference to the stage of completion at the reporting date. Stage of completion is
determined by reference to completion of the physical proportion of the work. Where the contract outcome
cannot be measured reliably, revenue is recognised to the extent of the expenses recognised that are
recoverable.

b)

Interest income
Interest income is recognised on an accrual basis using the effective interest method.
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2.

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (cont’d)
2.17 Income taxes
a)

Current tax
Current tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the
taxation authorities. The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the amount are those that are enacted or
substantively enacted by the reporting date.
Current taxes are recognised in profit or loss except to the extent that the tax relates to items recognised outside
profit or loss, either in other comprehensive income or directly in equity.

b)

Deferred tax
Deferred tax is provided using the liability method on temporary differences at the reporting date between the
tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes.
Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all temporary differences, except:
-

where the deferred tax liability arises from the initial recognition of goodwill or of an asset liability in a
transaction that is not a business combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither the
accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

-

in respect of taxable temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries, associates and
interests in joint ventures, where the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences
can be controlled and it is probable that the temporary differences will not reverse in the
foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences, carry forward of unused tax credits
and unused tax losses, to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the
deductible temporary differences, and the carry forward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be
utilised except:
-

where the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible temporary difference arises from initial recognition
of an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business combination and, at the time of the transaction,
affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

-

in respect of deductible temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries, associates and
interests in joint ventures, deferred tax assets are recognised only to the extent that it is probable that the
temporary differences will reverse in the foreseeable future and taxable profit will be available against
which the temporary differences can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to extent that it is no
longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be
utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are reassessed at each reporting date and are recognised to the extent
that it has become probable that future taxable profit will allow the deferred tax assets to be utilised.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the year when the
asset is realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates and tax laws that have been enacted or substantively
enacted at the reporting date.

Annual Report 2011

83

MGRC 2011-pg65-110-pantone:MGRC 05/11/2011 4:35 PM Page 84

Notes to the Financial Statements
For the financial year ended 30 June 2011

2.

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (cont’d)
2.17 Income taxes (cont’d)
b)

Deferred tax (cont’d)
Deferred tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or loss. Deferred tax
items are recognised in correlation to the underlying transaction either in other comprehensive income or directly
in equity and deferred tax arising from a business combination is adjusted against goodwill on acquisition.
Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset, if a legally enforceable right exists to off current tax
assets against current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same taxable entity and the same taxation
authority.

2.18 Share capital and share issuance expenses
An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of the Company after deducting
all of its liabilities. Ordinary shares are equity instruments.
Ordinary shares are recorded at the proceeds received, net of directly attributable incremental transaction costs.
Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Dividends on ordinary shares are recognised in equity in the period in which
they are declared.
3.

Significant Accounting Judgements and Estimates
The preparation of the Company’s financial statements requires management to make judgements, estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, and the disclosure of contingent
liabilities at the reporting date. However, uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could
result in outcomes that could require a material adjustment to the carrying amount of the asset or liability affected in the
future.
3.1

Judgements made in applying accounting policies
In the process of applying the Company’s accounting policies, management has made the following judgement, apart
from those involving estimations, which has the most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the financial
statements:
Revenue recognition
During the current financial year, the Company has recognised revenue amounting to RM7,071,182 services rendered
to a customer which is government backed. The revenue was recognised by reference to the stage of completion
which was determined by reference to completion of the physical proportion of the work at the reporting date.
Significant judgement is required in determining the stage of completion. In making the judgement, Company evaluates
based on the work of specialists.
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3.

Significant Accounting Judgements and Estimates (cont’d)
3.2

Key sources of estimation uncertainty
The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the reporting date that
have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next
financial year are discussed below.
a)

Economic useful lives of intangible asset
Management estimates the useful life of the intangible asset to be approximately 10 years. Changes in the
expected level of usage and technological developments could impact the economic useful lives and the residual
values of this asset, therefore future amortisation charges could be revised.

b)

Impairment of loans and receivables
The Company assesses at each reporting date whether there is any objective evidence that a financial asset is
impaired. To determine whether there is objective evidence of impairment, the Company considers factors
such as the probability of insolvency or significant financial difficulties of the debtor and default or significant
delay in payments.
Where there is objective evidence of impairment, the amount and timing of future cash flows are estimated
based on historical loss experience for assets with similar credit risk characteristics. The carrying amount of the
Company’s loans and receivable at the reporting date is disclosed Note 14.

4.

Revenue

Genomics Data Access Services
Contract Genomics Services

5.

1.7.2010
to
30.6.2011
RM

1.6.2009
to
30.6.2010
RM

4,800,000
7,346,185

5,200,000
10,578,810

12,146,185

15,778,810

1.7.2010
to
30.6.2011
RM

1.6.2009
to
30.6.2010
RM

-

1,052
394

-

1,446

Finance Costs

Interest expense on:
- hire purchase
- others
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6.

Profit Before Tax
The following amounts have been included in arriving at profit before tax:

Auditors' remuneration
- statutory audit
- other services
Rental of premises
Depreciation of plant and equipment (Note 11)
Amortisation of intangible assets (Note 12)
Net realised foreign exchange losses
Hire purchase interest
Gain on disposal of equipment
7.

1.7.2010
to
30.6.2011
RM

1.6.2009
to
30.6.2010
RM

60,000
25,000
152,945
421,697
610,969
34,210
(149)

45,000
136,315
272,802
661,882
41,329
1,052
-

1.7.2010
to
30.6.2011
RM

1.6.2009
to
30.6.2010
RM

2,888,017
13,490
200,754
95,291

1,896,241
9,277
135,757
61,049

3,197,552

2,102,324

Employee Benefits Expense

Wages and salaries
Social security contributions
Contributions to defined contribution plan
Other benefits

Included in wages and salaries of the Company is the remuneration of executive directors amounting to RM538,600
(2010: RM189,000).
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8.

Directors' Remuneration
1.7.2010
to
30.6.2011
RM

1.6.2009
to
30.6.2010
RM

538,600
-

189,000
25,000

538,600

214,000

Non-executive directors:
Fees (Note 6)

144,000

60,000

Total directors' remuneration

682,600

274,000

Executive directors:
Salaries representing amount
included in employee benefits expense (Note 7)
Other emoluments

The number of directors of the Company whose total remuneration during the financial year/period fell within the following
bands is analysed below:
Number of Directors
1.7.2010
1.6.2009
to
to
30.6.2011
30.6.2010
RM
RM
Executive Directors:
RM 50,001 - RM100,000
RM150,001 - RM200,000
RM350,001 - RM400,000
RM450,001 - RM500,000

1
1
1

1
1
1
-

Included in management fee as disclosed in Note 21(a) is the share of executive directors' remuneration charged by ultimate
holding company of RM175,928 (2010: RM350,032).
Non-executive Directors:
RM0 - RM50,000

3

3
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9.

Income Tax Expense
Major components of income tax expense
The major components of income tax expense for the year/period ended 30 June 2011 and 2010 are:
1.7.2010
to
30.6.2011
RM

1.6.2009
to
30.6.2010
RM

Current income tax
- Malaysian income tax
- Under provision in respect of prior period

132,778
9,242

43,278
-

Income tax expense recognised in profit or loss

142,020

43,278

Statement of comprehensive income:

The reconciliation between tax expense and the product of accounting profit multiplied by the applicable corporate tax rate
for the year/period ended 30 June 2011 and 2010 are as follows:

Profit before tax

1.7.2010
to
30.6.2011
RM

1.6.2009
to
30.6.2010
RM

2,777,036

9,359,532

Tax at Malaysian statutory tax rate of 25% (2010: 25%)
Adjustments:
Income not subject to tax
Expenses not deductible for tax purposes
Effect of utilisation of previously unrecognised deferred tax assets
Underprovision of taxation in prior period

694,259

2,339,883

(612,534)
51,053
9,242

(2,133,782)
8,369
(171,192)
-

Income tax expense recognised in profit or loss

142,020

43,278

Domestic income tax is calculated at the Malaysian statutory tax rate of 25% (2010: 25%) of the estimated assessable profit
for the year/period.
The Company is not liable to tax on its statutory business income for a period of 10 years as provided under the Income Tax
(Exemption) (No. 17) Order 2007 as the Company has been conferred BioNexus status on 23 July 2007. However, the
Company is liable to tax on its interest income at the Malaysian statutory tax rate of 25% (2010: 25%).
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9.

Income Tax Expense (cont’d)
Deferred tax asset and liability of the Company are as follows:

Deferred tax asset
Deferred tax liability

2011
RM

2010
RM

171,192
(171,192)

171,192
(171,192)

-

-

The components and movements of deferred tax asset and liability during the financial year/period prior to offsetting are
as follows:
Deferred tax asset of the Company:
Unused tax losses
2011
2010
RM
RM
At beginning of year/period
Recognised in income statement

171,192
-

171,192

At end of year/period

171,192

171,192

Deferred tax liability of the Company:
Intangible asset
2011
2010
RM
RM
At beginning of year/period
Recognised in income statement

(171,192)
-

(171,192)

At end of year/period

(171,192)

(171,192)
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10.

Earnings per Share
Basic earnings per share are calculated by dividing profit for the year/period, net of tax, attributable to owners of the parent
by the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the financial year/period.

Profit net of tax attributable to owners of the parent used in the
computation of basic earnings per share
Weighted average number of ordinary shares for basic
earnings per share computation
Basic earnings per share
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1.7.2010
to
30.6.2011
RM

1.6.2009
to
30.6.2010
RM

2,635,016

9,316,254

89,825,480

77,000,480

2.93

12.10

11.

482,533

At 30 June 2011

At 30 June 2011

66,209

416,324

At 30 June 2011

Net carrying amount

394,692
26,047
(4,415)

At 1 July 2010
Charge for the year (Note 6)
Disposal

Accumulated depreciation

405,220
81,729
(4,416)

Computer
Hardware
and
Software
RM

At 1 July 2010
Additions
Disposal

Cost

Plant and Equipment

4,961,088

1,835,621

1,509,743
325,878
-

6,796,709

1,817,052
4,979,657
-

Development
Servers and
Laboratory
Equipment
RM

119,776

47,695

31,321
16,374
-

167,471

138,058
29,413
-

Furniture,
Fittings and
Office
Equipment
RM

181,169

91,977

64,968
27,009
-

273,146

267,356
5,790
-

Renovation
and Airconditioners
RM

4,528

1,783

1,250
533
-

6,311

4,881
1,430
-

Books
and Logo
RM

23,702

105,580

79,724
25,856
-

129,282

129,282
-

Motor
Vehicle
RM

5,356,472

2,498,980

2,081,698
421,697
( 4,415)

7,855,452

2,761,849
5,098,019
(4,416)

Total
RM
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405,220

At 30 June 2010
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At 30 June 2010

10,528

394,692

At 30 June 2010

Net carrying amount

289,210
105,482

At 1 June 2009
Charge for the period (Note 6)

Accumulated depreciation

345,395
59,825

Computer
Hardware
and
Software
RM

At 1 June 2009
Additions

Cost

Plant and Equipment (cont’d)

307,309

1,509,743

1,413,874
95,869

1,817,052

1,579,602
237,450

Development
Servers and
Laboratory
Equipment
RM

106,737

31,321

16,724
14,597

138,058

74,273
63,785

Furniture,
Fittings and
Office
Equipment
RM

202,388

64,968

36,541
28,427

267,356

160,665
106,691

Renovation
and Airconditioners
RM

3,631

1,250

834
416

4,881

2,631
2,250

Books
and Logo
RM

49,558

79,724

51,713
28,011

129,282

129,282
-

Motor
Vehicle
RM

680,151

2,081,698

1,808,896
272,802

2,761,849

2,291,848
470,001

Total
RM
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12.

Intangible Assets
Software License
2011
2010
RM
RM
Cost
At beginning of year/period and at end of year/period

6,431,250

6,431,250

983,445
610,969

321,563
661,882

1,594,414

983,445

4,836,836

5,447,805

2011
RM

2010
RM

623,126

-

Accumulated amortisation
At beginning of year/period
Amortisation charge for the year/period (Note 6)
At end of year/period
Net carrying amount
At 30 June
13.

Inventories

Cost
Lab consumables

During the year, the amount of inventories recognised as an expense of the Company was RM1,140,447 (2010: nil).
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14.

Trade and Other Receivables
2011
RM

2010
RM

2,792,667

409,206

168,953
58,448

8,838
51,710

227,401

60,548

Total trade and other receivables
Add: Cash and bank balances (Note 17)

3,020,068
22,368,770

469,754
9,637,203

Total loans and receivables

25,388,838

10,106,957

Current
Trade receivables
Amount due from customers on contract (Note 15)
Other receivables
Advance to suppliers
Refundable deposits

Trade receivables
Trade receivables are non-interest bearing and are generally on 90 to 360 days (2010: 90 to 360 days) terms. They are
recognised at their original invoice amounts which represent their fair values on initial recognition.
Ageing analysis of trade receivables
The ageing analysis of the Company’s trade receivables is as follows:

Neither past due nor impaired
1 to 30 days past due not impaired
31 to 60 days past due not impaired
61 to 90 days past due not impaired
91to 120 days past due not impaired
More than 121 days past due not impaired
Impaired

2011
RM

2010
RM

2,792,667
-

409,206
-

2,792,667

409,206

Receivables that are neither past due nor impaired
Trade and other receivables that are neither past due nor impaired are creditworthy debtors with good payment
records with the Company. The Company's trade receivables mainly arise from a customer in organisation which is
government backed.
None of the Company’s trade receivables that are neither past due nor impaired have been renegotiated during the
financial year.
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15.

Amount Due from Customers on Contract

Aggregate amount of costs incurred plus recognised profits
representing amount due from customers on contract
16.

2011
RM

2010
RM

2,792,667

409,206

2011
RM

2010
RM

1,426,461

2,743,148

Other Current Assets

Prepaid operating expenses
Included in prepaid operating expenses are the following:
i)

prepaid exclusive license fee and prepaid system maintenance cost to immediate holding company amounting to
RM125,000 (2010: RM375,000) and RM648,900 (2010: RM648,900) respectively;

ii)

prepaid management fee to ultimate holding company amounting to RM Nil (2010: RM150,789)

The amount due from immediate holding company arose from the ordinary course of business and was unsecured, non
interest bearing and the credit term granted was 90 days.
17.

Cash and Bank Balances
2011
RM

2010
RM

Cash on hand and at banks
Deposits with licensed banks

68,770
22,300,000

2,837,203
6,800,000

Cash and bank balances

22,368,770

9,637,203

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on daily bank deposit rates. Short-term deposits are made for varying
periods of between one to three months depending on the immediate cash requirements of the Company, and earn interests
at the respective short-term deposit rates. The weighted average effective interest rates of deposits and average maturities
of deposits as at the end of the financial year/period are 3.02% (2010: 2.85%) and 39 days (2010: 67 days).
18.

Trade and Other Payables

Current
Trade payables
Third parties
Other payables
Accrued operating expenses
Deferred income

2011
RM

2010
RM

198,906

-

824,390
3,880,012

1,026,873
3,200,000

4,903,308

4,226,873
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18.

Trade and Other Payables (cont’d)
(a)

Trade payables
The normal trade credit term granted to the Company ranges from 1 to 90 days.

(b)

Related party balance
Included in accrued operating expenses is amount due to ultimate holding company amounting to RM71,752
(2010: nil)
The amount due to ultimate holding company arose from the ordinary course of business and was unsecured, non
interest bearing and the credit term granted was 90 days.

(c)

Deferred income
The deferred income will be recognised as revenue when the services are rendered by the Company.

19.

Share Capital and Share Premium
Number of
ordinary shares
of RM0.10 Each

Share capital
(Issued and
fully paid)

Amount

Share capital
(Issued and
fully paid)
RM

At 1 June 2009
Bonus issue
Subdivision of ordinary shares

1,925,012
5,775,036
69,300,432

1,925,012
5,775,036
-

1,174,988
-

3,100,000
5,775,036
-

At 30 June 2010 and
1 July 2010
Ordinary shares issue
Share issuance expenses

77,000,480
17,100,000
-

7,700,048
1,710,000
-

1,174,988
16,758,000
(3,177,947)

8,875,036
18,468,000
(3,177,947)

At 30 June 2011

94,100,480

9,410,048

14,755,041

24,165,089

Number of Ordinary Shares
of RM0.10 Each
2011
2010
RM
RM

96

Share
premium
RM

Total share
capital and
share
premium
RM

Amount
2011
RM

2010
RM

Authorised:
At beginning of year/period
Subdivision of ordinary shares

100,000,000
-

10,000,000
90,000,000

10,000,000
-

10,000,000
-

At end of year/period

100,000,000

100,000,000

10,000,000

10,000,000
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19.

Share Capital and Share Premium (cont’d)
During the financial year, the Company increased its issued and paid-up ordinary share capital from RM7,700,048 to
RM9,410,048 by way of the issuance of 17,100,000 ordinary shares of RM0.10 each at an issue price of RM1.08 per
ordinary share.
The new ordinary shares issued during the financial year ranked pari passu in all respects with the existing ordinary shares
of the Company.

20.

Retained Earnings
The entire retained earnings as at 30 June 2011 is available for distribution as tax exempt dividend.

21.

Significant Related Party Transactions
(a)

Significant related party transactions

Management fees charged by ultimate holding company
Other fees charged by immediate holding company
- Exclusive license fees
- System maintenance cost
Bioinformatics services rendered to immediate
holding company

1.7.2010
to
30.6.2011
RM

1.6.2009
to
30.6.2010
RM

798,092

811,066

250,000
1,203,750

270,833
1,304,063

-

(9,245,072)

1.7.2010
to
30.6.2011
RM

1.6.2009
to
30.6.2010
RM

983,810
58,260
259

609,554
43,368
1,601

1,042,329

654,523

The related party transactions are negotiated on terms mutually agreed between the parties.
(b)

Compensation of key management personnel

Short-term employee benefits
Defined contribution plan
Social security contributions

Included in management fee as disclosed in Note 21(a) is share of a key management personnel's remuneration
charged by the ultimate holding company amounting to RM Nil (2010: RM36,071).
Remuneration of directors is as disclosed in Note 8.
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22.

Commitment
Operating lease commitments - as lessee
The Company has entered into non-cancellable operating lease agreements for the use of office premises. These leases
have an average life of 2 years with renewal but no purchase option included in the contracts.
The future aggregate minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases contracted for as at the reporting
date but not recognised as liabilities are as follows:

Future minimum lease payables:
Not later than 1 year
23.

1.7.2010
to
30.6.2011
RM

1.6.2009
to
30.6.2010
RM

-

124,566

Financial Risk Management Objectives and Policies
The Company is exposed to financial risks arising from its operations and the use of financial instruments. The key financial
risks include credit risk, liquidity risk, interest rate risk and foreign currency risk.
The Board of Directors reviews and agrees on policies and procedures for the management of these risks, which are
executed by the Chief Financial Officer, Executive Director and Managing Director. The audit committee provides
independent oversight to the effectiveness of the risk management process.
It is, and has been throughout the current and previous financial year, the Company’s policy that no derivatives shall be
undertaken except for the use as hedging instruments where appropriate and cost-efficient. The Company does not apply
hedge accounting.
(a)

Credit risk
Credit risk is the risk of loss that may arise on outstanding financial instruments should a counterparty default on its
obligations. The Company’s exposure to credit risk arises primarily from trade receivables. For other financial assets
(including cash and bank balances), the Company minimise credit risk by dealing exclusively with high credit rating
counterparties.
The Company’s objective is to seek continual revenue growth while minimising losses incurred due to increased credit
risk exposure. The Company trades only with recognised and creditworthy third parties. It is the Company’s policy
that all customers who wish to trade on credit terms are subject to credit verification procedures. In addition, receivable
balances are monitored on an ongoing basis with the result that the Company’s exposure to bad debts is not significant.
For transactions that do not occur in the country of the relevant operating unit, the Company does not offer credit
terms without the approval of the Managing Director.
Exposure to credit risk
At the reporting date, 90% of the total receivables of the Company was due from one customer.
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23.

Financial Risk Management Objectives and Policies (cont’d)
(b)

Liquidity risk
Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will encounter difficulty in meeting financial obligations due to shortage of
funds. The Company actively manages its debt maturity profile, operating cash flows and the availability of funding so
as to ensure that all repayment and funding needs are met. As part of its overall prudent liquidity management, the
Company maintains sufficient levels of cash or cash convertible investments to meet its working capital requirements.

(c)

Interest rate risk
Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of the Company’s financial instruments will fluctuate
because of changes in market interest rates.
The Company's primary interest rate risk relates to fixed deposits with licensed banks. The investments in financial
assets are mainly short term in nature and they are not held for speculative purposes but have been mostly placed in
fixed deposits. As the Company has no significant floating interest-bearing assets and liabilities, the Company's income
and operating cash flows are substantially independent of changes in market interest rates.
The information on maturity days and effective interest rates of financial assets is disclosed in Note 17.

(d)

Foreign currency risk
Foreign currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because
of changes in foreign exchange rates.
The Company has transactional currency exposures arising from sales or purchases that are denominated in a currency
other than the functional currency of the Company. The foreign currencies in which these transactions are denominated
are mainly US Dollars (“USD”).
Sensitivity analysis for foreign currency risk
The following table demonstrates the sensitivity of the Company’s profit net of tax to a reasonably possible change in
the USD exchange rates against the functional currency of the Company, with all other variables
held constant.
1.7.2010
to
30.6.2011
RM
Profit net of
tax
USD/RM - strengthened 5%
- weakened 5%

(11,067)
11,067
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24.

Capital Management
The primary objective of the Company's capital management is to ensure it maintains a healthy level of financial standing in
order to support its business and maximise shareholders' value. The Company manages its own capital structure and adopts
to changes in the light of prevailing economic conditions. No major changes were made in the objectives, policies or
processes during the financial year ended 30 June 2011.

25.

Segment Information
FRS 8 requires identification of reporting segment on the basis of internal reports that are regularly reveiwed by the
Company's Chief Operating Decision Maker in order to allocate resources to the segment and assess its performance. The
management monitors the operating results of the Company as a whole for the purpose of making decisions about resource
allocation and performance assessment. As at the reporting date, the Company has only a single reportable segment for
the year under review as well as the foreseeable future.
Information about major customers
Revenue from major customers are as follows:

Government agencies
Immediate holding company

26.

1.7.2010
to
30.6.2011
RM

1.6.2009
to
30.6.2010
RM

11,871,182
-

5,200,000
9,245,072

11,871,182

14,445,072

Supplementary Information - Breakdown of Retained Profits Into Realised and Unrealised
The breakdown of the retained profits of the Company as at 30 June 2011 into realised and unrealised profits is
presented in accordance with the directive issued by Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad dated 25 March 2010 and prepared
in accordance with Guidance on Special Matter No. 1, Determination of Realised and Unrealised Profits or Losses in the
Context of Disclosure Pursuant to Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad Listing Requirements, as issued by the Malaysian
Institute of Accountants.
2011
RM
Total retained profits of the Company, representing realised retained
profits as per financial statements

100
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Analysis of Shareholdings
as at 14 October 2011

Authorised Share Capital
Issued and Paid-up Share Capital
Class of Share
Voting Right

:
:
:
:

RM10,000,000 divided into 100,000,000 ordinary shares of RM0.10 each
RM9,410,048 divided into 94,100,480 ordinary shares of RM0.10 each
Ordinary Shares of RM0.10 each
One vote per ordinary share

List of Substantial Shareholders as per the Register of Substantial Shareholders

Name of Substantial Shareholders
Synamatix Sdn Bhd
Neuramatix Sdn Bhd
Encipta Ltd
Continuum Capital Sdn Bhd
Pulau Tiga Ventures Sdn Bhd
Khazanah Nasional Berhad
Robert George Hercus @ Abdul Karim Hercus
Munirah binti Haji Abdul Hamid

Direct
60,516,070
4,813,450
851,679
80,000
100,000

No. of Shares Held
%
Indirect
64.31
5.12
0.91
0.09
0.11

60,516,070 (1)
65,329,520 (2)
66,181,199 (3)
66,181,199 (3)
66,181,199 (3)
65,357,520 (4)
65,357,520 (5)

%
64.31
69.43
70.34
70.34
70.34
69.45
69.45

Note:

102

(1)

Deemed interest under Section 6A of the Companies Act, 1965 by virtue of its substantial interest in Synamatix
Sdn Bhd.

(2)

Deemed interest through Synamatix Sdn Bhd and Neuramatix Sdn Bhd pursuant to Section 6A of the Companies Act, 1965.
It has direct and deemed equity interest of 15.05% in Neuramatix Sdn Bhd.

(3)

Deemed interest under Section 6A of the Companies Act, 1965 by virtue of its substantial interest in Encipta Ltd. Encipta
Ltd is 100% owned by Continuum Capital Sdn Bhd, of which Pulau Tiga Ventures Sdn Bhd has a 100% direct equity interest.
Pulau Tiga Ventures Sdn Bhd is 100% owned by Khazanah Nasional Berhad.

(4)

Robert George Hercus @ Abdul Karim Hercus is deemed interested through Synamatix Sdn Bhd and Neuramatix Sdn Bhd.
He has direct equity interest of 15.52% in Neuramatix Sdn Bhd. The indirect interest includes shares held by his son, Adlan
Hercus pursuant to Section 134 of the Companies Act, 1965.

(5)

Munirah binti Haji Abdul Hamid is deemed interested through Synamatix Sdn Bhd and Neuramatix Sdn Bhd. She has direct
equity interest of 46.55% in Neuramatix Sdn Bhd. The indirect interest includes shares held by her son, Adlan Hercus
pursuant to Section 134 of the Companies Act, 1965.
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List of Directors’ Shareholdings as per the Register of Directors’ Shareholdings

Name of Directors

Direct

Robert George Hercus @ Abdul Karim Hercus
Munirah binti Haji Abdul Hamid
Tan Sri Datuk (Dr) Rafiah binti Salim
Dato’ Dr Norraesah binti Haji Mohamad
Ahmad Fauzi bin Ali
Loh Lee Soon

80,000
100,000
100,000
140,000
100,000
110,000

No. of Shares Held
%
Indirect

%

65,357,520 (1)
65,357,520 (2)
-

69.45
69.45
-

0.09
0.11
0.11
0.15
0.11
0.11

Note:
(1)

Deemed interest through Synamatix Sdn Bhd and Neuramatix Sdn Bhd. He has direct equity interest of 15.52% in
Neuramatix Sdn Bhd. The indirect interest includes shares held by his son, Adlan Hercus pursuant to Section 134 of the
Companies Act, 1965.

(2)

Deemed interest through Synamatix Sdn Bhd and Neuramatix Sdn Bhd. She has direct equity interest of 46.55% in
Neuramatix Sdn Bhd. The indirect interest includes shares held by her son, Adlan Hercus pursuant to Section 134 of the
Companies Act, 1965.

Distribution of Shareholdings as per the Record of Depositors
Shareholders

No. of
Shareholders

% of
Shareholders

No. of Shares
Held

% of Issued Share
Capital

1 – 99
100 – 1,000
1,001 – 10,000
10,001 – 100,000
100,001 – 4,705,023 (less than 5%
of issued share capital)
4,705,024 (5% of issued share capital) and above

3
117
184
78
40

0.71
27.59
43.40
18.40
9.43

100
106,700
898,600
3,330,400
24,435,160

0.00
0.11
0.95
3.54
25.97

2

0.47

65,329,520

69.43

Total

424

100.00

94,100,480

100.00
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List of Thirty (30) Largest Securities Account Holders as per the Record of Depositors
No. Name of Shareholders
1.
2.
3.
4.
5.
6.
7.
8.
9.
10.
11.
12.
13.
14.
15.
16.
17.
18.
19.
20.
21.
22.
23.
24.
25.
26.
27.
28.
29.
30.

104

Synamatix Sdn Bhd
Neuramatix Sdn Bhd
Malizan bin Mahmood
Abdul Farish bin Abd Rashid
Inertia AIF Sdn Bhd
Muhammad Fuad bin Kamaludin
Mohamed Roslan bin Mohamed Shamsudin
Ahmad Redza bin Abdullah
Shahril bin Shamsuddin
Singularity Ventures Sdn Bhd
Encipta Ltd
Shaharudin bin Ismail
Khong Cheng Yee
Nor Azizan binti Adnan
Maznah binti Ali
S.Elias bin Abd.Rahman Alhabshi
Noraziah binti Adnan
A Aziz bin Mohd Isa
Mohd Rafael bin Mohd Shamsudin
Azlan Shairi bin Asidin
Norliza binti Ahmad Kharman Shah
Che Onn bin Ismail
Kamarudin bin Meranun
Mohamad Razali bin Mohamad Rasani
Mohamed Rozhan bin Mohd Ghazalli
Azri Zaki bin Omar
Liao Kuei Hsiang @ June Liao
Razali bin Manap
Suzareen binti Mohd Tajri
Public Nominees (Tempatan) Sdn Bhd
- Pledged Securities Account for Eu Hong Ngo
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No. of Shares Held

% of Issued Share Capital

60,516,070
4,813,450
3,541,500
3,286,900
1,334,882
1,250,000
1,200,000
1,000,000
1,000,000
999,999
851,679
760,100
760,000
693,000
530,000
500,000
492,000
463,000
460,000
450,000
405,000
400,000
400,000
300,000
300,000
260,000
250,000
250,000
250,000
242,700

64.31
5.12
3.76
3.49
1.42
1.33
1.28
1.06
1.06
1.06
0.91
0.81
0.81
0.74
0.56
0.53
0.52
0.49
0.49
0.48
0.43
0.43
0.43
0.32
0.32
0.28
0.27
0.27
0.27
0.26
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NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the Seventh Annual General Meeting of the
Company will be held at Westside Room 4, Level 8, Boulevard Hotel,
Mid Valley City, Lingkaran Syed Putra, 59200 Kuala Lumpur on Tuesday,
6 December 2011 at 9:30 a.m. for the following purposes:AGENDA
1.

To receive the Audited Financial Statements for the financial year ended 30 June 2011 together with the Reports of the
Directors and Auditors thereon.
Resolution 1

2.

To approve the payment of Directors’ fees for the financial year ended 30 June 2011.

3.

To re-elect the following Directors who shall retire by rotation pursuant to Article 101 of the Company’s Articles
of Association:(a) Munirah binti Haji Abdul Hamid
Resolution 3
(b) Ahmad Fauzi bin Ali
Resolution 4

4.

To re-appoint Messrs. Ernst & Young as the Auditors of the Company and to authorise the Directors to fix
their remuneration.
Resolution 5

5.

As Special Business

Resolution 2

To consider and, if thought fit, to pass the following resolutions with or without modifications:Ordinary Resolution 1
Authority to issue and allot shares pursuant to Section 132D of the Companies Act, 1965
That subject always to the Companies Act, 1965, Articles of Association of the Company and approvals from Bursa Malaysia
Securities Berhad and any other governmental/regulatory bodies, where such approval is required, authority be and is hereby
given to the Directors pursuant to Section 132D of the Companies Act, 1965 to issue not more than ten percent (10%) of
the issued capital of the Company at any time upon any such terms and conditions and for such purposes as the Directors
may in their absolute discretion deem fit or in pursuance of offers, agreements, options or other instruments to be made or
granted by the Directors while this approval is in force until the conclusion of the next Annual General Meeting of the
Company and that the Directors be and are hereby further authorized to make or grant offers, agreements, options or other
instruments which would or might require shares to be issued after the expiration of the approval hereof.
Resolution 6
Ordinary Resolution 2
Proposed Renewal of the Existing Shareholders’ Mandate for Recurrent Related Party Transactions of
a Revenue or Trading Nature
That subject to the Companies Act, 1965 (“the Act”), the Memorandum and Articles of Association of the Company and
Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad ACE Market Listing Requirements, approval be and is hereby given to the Company to
enter into any of the category of recurrent related party transactions of a revenue or trading nature as stated in Section 2.3
of the Circular to Shareholders dated 14 November 2011, which are necessary for the Company’s day-to-day operations
subject further to the following:-
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5.

As Special Business (cont’d)
(a)

the transactions are in the ordinary course of business and are on normal commercial terms which are not more
favourable to the related parties than those available to the public and on terms not to the detriment of the minority
shareholders; and

(b)

disclosure is made in the annual report of the breakdown of the aggregate value of transactions conducted pursuant
to the Shareholders’ Mandate during the financial year based on the following information:
(i)

the types of recurrent related party transactions made; and

(ii)

the names of the related parties involved in each type of the recurrent related party transactions made and their
relationship with the Company.

AND that such approval shall continue to be in force until:(i)

the conclusion of the next Annual General Meeting (“AGM”) of the Company following the forthcoming AGM at
which such Proposed Renewal of the Existing Shareholders’ Mandate was passed, at which time it will lapse,
unless by a resolution passed at an AGM whereby the authority is renewed;

(ii)

the expiration of the period within which the next AGM of the Company subsequent to the date it is required to
be held pursuant to the provisions of the Act; or

(iii)

revoked or varied by resolution passed by the shareholders in an AGM or Extraordinary General Meeting,

whichever is the earlier; and
That the Directors and/or any of them be and are hereby authorised to complete and do all such acts and things (including
executing such documents as may be required) to give effect to the transactions contemplated and/or authorised by this
Resolution 7
ordinary resolution.
6.

To transact any other ordinary business of which due notice shall have been given.

By Order of the Board

CHUA SIEW CHUAN (MAICSA 0777689)
MAK CHOOI PENG (MAICSA 7017931)
Company Secretaries
Kuala Lumpur
14 November 2011
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Explanatory Notes:1.

Authority to issue and allot shares pursuant to Section 132D of the Companies Act, 1965
The above Ordinary Resolution 1, if passed, will empower the Directors of the Company to issue and allot shares at any
time to such persons in their absolute discretion without convening a general meeting provided that the aggregate number
of the shares issued does not exceed 10% of the issued share capital of the Company for the time being (hereinafter referred
to as the ‘General Mandate’).
The General Mandate will enable the Directors to take swift action for allotment of shares for any possible fund raising
activities, including but not limited to further placing of shares, for the purpose of funding future investment project(s),
working capital and/or acquisition(s) and to avoid delay and cost in convening general meetings to approve such issue of
shares.
The Company did not table any proposal for new allotment of shares pursuant to Section 132D of the Companies Act, 1965
at the Sixth Annual General Meeting of the Company held on 10 December 2010.

2.

Proposed Renewal of The Existing Shareholders’ Mandate for Recurrent Related Party Transactions of a Revenue
or Trading Nature
The proposed adoption of the Ordinary Resolution 2 is intended to renew the Shareholders’ Mandate granted by the
Shareholders of the Company at the Sixth Annual General Meeting held on 10 December 2010. The Proposed Renewal of
the Existing Shareholders’ Mandate will enable the Company to enter into recurrent related party transactions to facilitate
transactions in the normal course of business of the Company which are transacted from time to time with the specified
classes of related parties, provided that they are carried out on an arm’s length basis and on normal commercial terms and
are not prejudicial to the shareholders on terms not more favourable to the related parties than those generally available to
the public and are not to the detriment of the minority shareholders of the Company.

Notes:1.

In respect of deposited securities, only members whose names appear in the Record of Depositors on 25 November 2011
(“General Meeting Record of Depositors”) shall be eligible to attend the Meeting.

2.

A member of the Company entitled to attend and vote at the Meeting is entitled to appoint at least one (1) proxy to attend
and vote in his stead. A proxy may but need not be a member of the Company and a member may appoint any person to
be his proxy without limitation and the provisions of Section 149(1)(a) and (b) of the Companies Act, 1965 shall not apply to
the Company.

3.

A member shall be entitled to appoint not more than two proxies to attend and vote at a meeting of the Company except
where the member is a Depositor who is also an Authorised Nominee, then the Authorised Nominee may appoint one proxy
in respect of each securities account the Authorised Nominee holds with ordinary shares in the Company standing to credit
of such securities account as reflected in the Record of Depositors requested by the Company pursuant to Article 57(b)(ii)
for the purposes of the meeting for which the Authorised Nominee is appointing the proxy.

4.

The instrument appointing a proxy shall be in writing in such form as the Directors may from time to time prescribe under
the hand of the appointer or of his attorney duly authorised in writing or, if the appointer is a corporation, either under seal
or under the hand of an officer or attorney duly authorized.

5.

The instrument appointing a proxy and the power of attorney or other authority, if any, under which it is signed or a notarially
certified copy of that power or authority shall be deposited at the registered office of the Company at Level 7, Menara
Milenium, Jalan Damanlela, Pusat Bandar Damansara, Damansara Heights, 50490 Kuala Lumpur not less than 48 hours
before the time for holding the meeting or adjourned meeting at which the person named in the instrument proposes to
vote, or, in the case of a poll, not less than twenty-four hours before the time appointed for the taking of the poll, and in
default the instrument of proxy shall not be treated as valid.
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Form of Proxy
MALAYSIAN GENOMICS RESOURCE CENTRE BERHAD

No. of Shares Held

CDS Account No.

Shareholder’s Contact No.

(Company No. 652790-V)

I/We,
(FULL NAME IN BLOCK CAPITALS)

NRIC No.

of
(FULL ADDRESS)

being a member(s) of MALAYSIAN GENOMICS RESOURCE CENTRE BERHAD, hereby appoint

(FULL NAME IN BLOCK CAPITALS)

NRIC No.

of
(FULL ADDRESS)

or failing him/her,
(FULL NAME IN BLOCK CAPITALS)

NRIC No.

of
(FULL ADDRESS)

or failing him/her, the Chairman of the Meeting, as my/our proxy to vote for me/us and on my/our behalf at the Seventh Annual
General Meeting of the Company to be held at Westside Room 4, Level 8, Boulevard Hotel, Mid Valley City, Lingkaran Syed Putra,
59200 Kuala Lumpur on Tuesday, 6 December 2011 at 9:30 a.m. or at any adjournment thereof.
Please indicate an “X” in the space provided below on how you wish your votes to be cast. If no specific instruction as to voting
is given, the Proxy will vote or abstain from voting at his/her discretion.
RESOLUTIONS

FOR

Resolution 1

To receive the Audited Financial Statements for the financial year ended
30 June 2011 together with the Reports of the Directors and Auditors
thereon.

Resolution 2

To approve the payment of Directors’ fees for the financial year ended
30 June 2011.

Resolution 3

To re-elect Puan Munirah binti Haji Abdul Hamid as a Director.

Resolution 4

To re-elect Encik Ahmad Fauzi bin Ali as a Director.

Resolution 5

To re-appoint Messrs. Ernst & Young as the Auditors of the Company
and to authorise the Directors to fix their remuneration.

Resolution 6

Special Business
Ordinary Resolution 1
- Authority to issue an allot shares pursuant to Section 132D of the
Companies Act, 1965

Resolution 7

Special Business
Ordinary Resolution 2
- Proposed renewal of the existing shareholders’ mandate for recurrent
related party transactions of a revenue or trading nature

Signed on this

day of

AGAINST

2011
Signature of Member(s)/Common Seal
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Notes:
1.

In respect of deposited securities, only members whose names appear in the Record of Depositors on 25 November 2011 (“General
Meeting Record of Depositors”) shall be eligible to attend the Meeting.

2.

A member of the Company entitled to attend and vote at the Meeting is entitled to appoint at least one (1) proxy to attend and vote in his
stead. A proxy may but need not be a member of the Company and a member may appoint any person to be his proxy without limitation
and the provisions of Section 149(1)(a) and (b) of the Companies Act, 1965 shall not apply to the Company.

3.

A member shall be entitled to appoint not more than two proxies to attend and vote at a meeting of the Company except where the member
is a Depositor who is also an Authorised Nominee, then the Authorised Nominee may appoint one proxy in respect of each securities
account the Authorised Nominee holds with ordinary shares in the Company standing to credit of such securities account as reflected in
the Record of Depositors requested by the Company pursuant to Article 57(b)(ii) for the purposes of the meeting for which the Authorised
Nominee is appointing the proxy.

4.

The instrument appointing a proxy shall be in writing in such form as the Directors may from time to time prescribe under the hand of the
appointer or of his attorney duly authorised in writing or, if the appointer is a corporation, either under seal or under the hand of an officer
or attorney duly authorized.

5.

The instrument appointing a proxy and the power of attorney or other authority, if any, under which it is signed or a notarially certified copy
of that power or authority shall be deposited at the registered office of the Company at Level 7, Menara Milenium, Jalan Damanlela, Pusat
Bandar Damansara, Damansara Heights, 50490 Kuala Lumpur not less than 48 hours before the time for holding the meeting or adjourned
meeting at which the person named in the instrument proposes to vote, or, in the case of a poll, not less than twenty-four hours before the
time appointed for the taking of the poll, and in default the instrument of proxy shall not be treated as valid.

STAMP

MALAYSIAN GENOMICS RESOURCE CENTRE BERHAD
(Company No. 652790-V)

Level 7, Menara Milenium
Jalan Damanlela
Pusat Bandar Damansara
Damansara Heights
50490 Kuala Lumpur

